
 

Creating Central Bedfordshire 

 Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands 
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
please ask for 

direct line 
date 

 
Mr John Phillipson 
01462 611034 
17 February 2009 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 
Members of the Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council are hereby 

summoned to attend a meeting of the: - 
 

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE SHADOW COUNCIL 
 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

Time: 
 

5.00 p.m. 
 

Venue: 
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, PRIORY HOUSE, 
MONKS WALK, CHICKSANDS, SHEFFORD 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Jaki Salisbury 
Interim Chief Executive 

Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council 
 
 
 
 
 
To: The Chairman and Members of the Central Bedfordshire Shadow 

Council  
 
 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME  
TO ATTEND THIS MEETING 



2 

 

AGENDA 
 

PRAYERS TO BE TAKEN BY  
REVEREND RICHARD ANDREWS,  

TEAM RECTOR AND PRINCIPAL MINISTER 
AT PRIORY CHURCH OF  
ST PETER, DUNSTABLE 

 

 
 

APOLOGIES 

 
The Chairman to ask for any apologies received in advance of the meeting. The 
Chairman to ask the meeting if there are any other apologies to be recorded. 
 

 

MINUTES 

 
The Chairman to invite the Council to approve the signing of the Minutes of the 
Meeting of the Shadow Council held on 8 July 2008 (Minute Nos. SC/08/11 to 
SC/08/15). 

 

MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
To receive from Members declarations and the nature thereof in relation to: -  
 

(a) Personal Interests in any Agenda item 
 

(b) Personal and Prejudicial Interests in any Agenda item 
 

 
 

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS 

 
The Chairman to make any announcements or communications. 
 
 

 

VACATION OF OFFICE 

 
To advise the Shadow Council that Bedfordshire County Council has declared the 
seat in the Plantation Division of the County Council vacant owing to the failure of 
County Councillor Paul Walley to attend any meeting of the County Council for a 
period of six consecutive months and that Cllr Walley has therefore has also 
ceased to be a Member of the Shadow Council. 
 
(Report of the Monitoring Officer attached – pages 5.1 to 5.2) 
 
 



3 

 

MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2009/10 

 
To approve and adopt a Scheme of Members’ Allowances for Central Bedfordshire 
Council for the year commencing 1 April 2009, having regard to the 
recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and a revised Scheme 
proposed by the Shadow Executive at its meeting on 20 January 2009. 
 
(Report of the Director of Corporate Resources attached – pages 6.1 – 6.44) 
 
 

 

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE DRAFT CONSTITUTION AND INTERIM 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

 
To approve and adopt the Constitution of Central Bedfordshire Council together 
with the interim governance arrangements during the period 1 April to 7 June 2009. 
 
(Report of the Constitution and Governance Working Group attached – pages 7.1 to 
7.2) 
 
Please note that the Constitution can be viewed by taking the following link: 
 
Mid Beds District Council - Library document - Draft Central Bedfordshire Council 
Constitution 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SHADOW EXECUTIVE AND ANY QUESTIONS 
RAISED UNDER FULL COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 8.1 IN RELATION TO 
THOSE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 (a) SHADOW EXECUTIVE – 20 JANUARY 2009  

  
(i) Reserves Policy 

Minute No. SE/08/77 
 

 The Shadow Executive considered the report of the Director of 
Corporate Resources, which asked for an appropriate policy for the 
level of general fund reserve for 2009-10 be agreed. 
 
The Portfolio Holder (Corporate Resources) informed the 
Committee that the level of reserves had been calculated using the 
information available. 
 
In response to questions regarding the level proposed in paragraph 
17, the Portfolio Holder and Director of Corporate Resources 
confirmed that the figure was realistic and had been risk assessed. 
The level would be reviewed each year with a target of £6m to £7m 
reserves once transitional costs had been repaid. It had been 
noted that until the three legacy authorities had closed down their 
accounts an accurate review would not be possible. It was agreed 
that this be done as soon as possible after account closure. 



4 

 
Reason for decision: To agree an appropriate policy for the level of 
general fund reserves during 2009/10. 
 
RECOMMENDED 
 
that the Shadow Council:- 
 
(a) approves the reserves policy for 2009/10 as set out in 

the report of the Director of Corporate Resources; 
 

(b) approves the setting of the minimum General Fund 
Reserve level for 2009/10 at £4.68m for Central 
Bedfordshire as indicated in paragraph 17 of Appendix 
1 to the report of the Director of Corporate Resources; 
and 

 
(c) determines that the Authority will review the reserves 

policy following the closure of the accounts of the three 
legacy authorities. 

 
   

 (b) SHADOW EXECUTIVE – 17 FEBRUARY 2009  

  
NOTES: 1. This Agenda has been despatched prior to the Executive’s 

meeting on 17 February 2009.  However it is anticipated 
that recommendations on the following items will be 
submitted for Council approval:- 
 

  (a) Treasury Management Strategy 
 (b) Capital Programme and Investment Strategy 
 (c) Revenue Budget 2009/10 and Medium Term 

Financial Plan 
 

 

2. The recommendations will be circulated as soon as 
possible after the Shadow Executive’s meeting, together 
with any comments of the Scrutiny Committee upon the 
budget following its meeting on 19 February.  The 
Chairman will permit these recommendations to be dealt 
with as urgent items of business to allow the setting of the 
Budget and Council Tax within the statutory timescales. 
 

 

3. The Chairman has exercised his authority under Council 
Procedure Rule No. 2 to vary the order of business to take 
this item in conjunction with the report on the Council Tax 
at item 9. 

 
 
 
 
 

 



5 

COUNCIL TAX 2009/10 

 
To report the Budget Proposals of the Executive from its meeting of 17 February 
2009 and present the Formal Council Tax Resolution. 
 
(Report of the Director of Corporate Resources attached – pages 9.1 to 9.17) 
 
 

 

APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRMAN TO COMMITTEES FROM APRIL 
TO JUNE 

 
To receive and consider the report of the Monitoring Officer on recommendations of 
the Group Leaders in relation to the appointment of Members and substitutes to 
Committees and other forums and the appointment of the Chairmen and Vice-
Chairmen of certain Committees of the Council between April – June 2009. 
 
(Report of the Monitoring Officer attached – pages 10.1 to 10.13) 
 

 

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS APRIL 2009 - MAY 2010 

 
To approve the Calendar of Meetings for Central Bedfordshire April 2009 – May 
2010. 
 
(Report of the Monitoring Officer attached – pages 11.1 – 11.4) 
 

 

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS TO THE CENTRAL 
BEDFORDSHIRE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
To endorse the appointment of the five independent persons to the Standards 
Committee. 
 
(Report of the Monitoring Officer attached – pages 12.1 – 12.3) 
 

 

APPOINTMENT OF TOWN/PARISH MEMBERS TO THE CENTRAL 
BEDFORDSHIRE STANDARDS COMMITTEE 

 
To endorse the appointment of five Town/Parish Members to the Central 
Bedfordshire Standards Committee. 
 
(Report of the the Monitoring Officer attached – pages 13.1 – 13.3) 
 
 



6 

 

Note: This information can be provided in an 
alternative format or language on request  
(08452 30 40 40 )  

 

♦ 
(08452 30 40 40) (Bengali) 

 

♦ (08452 30 40 
40) (Chinese) 

 

♦ 
(08452 30 40 40) (Punjabi) 

 

♦ (08452 
30 40 40) (Urdu) 

 

♦ Questa informazione puo’ essere fornita su richiesta in un altro 
formato o un’altra lingua telefonando al numero (08452 30 40 
40) (Italian) 

 

♦ Informację tą można uzyskać również w innym formacie lub 
innym języku dzwoniąc pod numer (08452 30 40 40) (Polish) 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 5 

 

5.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT VACATION OF BEDFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL OFFICE 
BY FAILURE TO ATTEND MEETINGS 
 
(To advise the Shadow Council that Bedfordshire County Council 
has declared the seat in the Plantation Division of the Council 
vacant owing to the failure of  County Councillor Paul Walley to 
attend any meeting of the County Council for a period of six 
consecutive months and that Cllr Walley has therefore also ceased 
to be a member of the Shadow Council.) 
 

REPORT OF Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Kathrin John (01462 611033) 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY None 

FINANCIAL None 

LEGAL Sections 85 and 86 (1) (c) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES None 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADES UNION None 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 
1.   That the Shadow Council notes that Cllr R P Walley, County Councillor 

for the Plantation Division, has ceased to be a member of the County 
Council having failed to attend any meeting of the Authority for a period 
of six consecutive months and has therefore also ceased to be a 
member of Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council.  
 

2.   That the Shadow Council notes that the County Council has declared 
the seat vacant under Section 86 (1) (c) of the Local Government Act 
1972 but that, in accordance with the Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) 
Order 2008, there is no need to hold a by-election to fill the casual 
vacancy. 
 

 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 5 

 

5.2 

 
Background 
 
1. Bedfordshire County Council at its meeting held on 12 February 2009 noted 

that Councillor R P Walley, County Councillor had ceased to be a member 
of the County Council having failed to attend any meeting of the Authority for 
a period of six consecutive months. 
 

2. The Council accordingly declared the seat vacant but noted that, in 
accordance with the Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order 2008,  no 
election shall be held to fill any vacancy arising after 30 September 2008. 
 

3. Cllr Walley was a member of Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council  by 
virtue of his membership of Bedfordshire County Council and his 
membership of the Shadow Council has now also therefore ceased. 
 

4. The Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order provides that,  where before 
30 September 2008 a by-election is held to fill a casual vacancy arising in 
any Central electoral division (ie: division of the County Council), or in any 
ward of either Mid or South Bedfordshire, the person elected at the by-
election shall be a member of the shadow authority.  As the casual vacancy 
has arisen after 30 September, there is no requirement for a County Council 
by-election to fill the vacancy. 
 

 
 

 
Background Papers: 
 

None 

Location of Papers: 
 

N/A 

File Reference:  
 

N/A 

 
 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2009/10 
 
(To approve and adopt a Scheme of Members’ Allowances for Central 
Bedfordshire Council for the year commencing 1 April 2009, having regard to 
the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and a revised 
Scheme proposed by the Shadow Executive at its meeting on 20 January 
2009.)  
 

REPORT OF Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Contact Officer: Rob Mills Tel. 0845 849 6274 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY None  

FINANCIAL The revised Scheme proposed by the Shadow 
Executive is estimated to cost £1,243,682. 
Estimated employer contributions to the Local 
Government Superannuation Scheme would cost a 
further £75,000, assuming 33% take-up based on 
current County Council experience. 
 
Provision has been made in the overall budget for 
members’ costs.   
 

LEGAL The Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order 2008 
requires the shadow authority to formulate 
proposals for the scheme of members’ allowances 
to be adopted by Central Bedfordshire Council. 
The recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel appended to this report 
accord with the provisions of The Local Authorities 
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 
2003 which govern such schemes, as do the 
revised proposals since put forward by the Shadow 
Executive. 
 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES None 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADE UNIONS None 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

KEY ISSUE Yes 

BUDGET/POLICY FRAMEWORK Yes 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.2 

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 That the Shadow Council  

 (a) considers whether to adopt a Scheme of Members’ Allowances for Central 
Bedfordshire Council for the year commencing 1 April 2009 as outlined in 
Appendix A.2 and as recommended in the full Scheme set out at Appendix 
C, at an estimated cost of £1,243,682;  
 

 (b) resolves that all Central Bedfordshire councillors should be given access 
to the Local Government Pension Scheme, based on the sum of basic 
allowance and any special responsibility allowance that may be payable, at 
an estimated cost of £75,000; 
 

 (c) requests the Independent Remuneration Panel to review the Scheme in the 
autumn of 2009 in the light of further evidence of the demands and 
responsibilities placed upon Members of the new Council and of similar 
unitary authorities; and 
 

 (d) agrees to amend retrospectively the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for 
the year commencing 1 April 2008, adopted by the Shadow Council on 8 
July 2008, to enable the payment of a special responsibility allowance to 
those members nominated by the Shadow Council to serve as observer 
members of the Bedfordshire Police Authority or the Bedfordshire and 
Luton Combined Fire Authority who are not already members; the 
allowance to be paid pro rata to the period of appointment at the rate set 
for existing members by those two authorities. 
 

 
 Background 

 
1. Article 18(5) of The Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order 2008 places a duty on the 

Shadow Council to formulate proposals for the scheme of members’ allowances to be 
adopted by Central Bedfordshire Council. This must be done in accordance with The 
Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (the 2003 
Regulations). 
 

2. In addition to a basic allowance for all members of an authority, the 2003 Regulations 
enable the inclusion within a scheme of the following allowances: 
 

 (a) special responsibility allowance (SRA) to such members of the authority as 
have significant special responsibilities; 
 

 (b)  dependants’ carers’ allowance in respect of expenses incurred in arranging 
for the care of their children or dependants whilst attending meetings and 
other duties specified in the 2003 Regulations; 
 

 (c) 
 

travelling and subsistence allowance; and 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.3 

 (d) co-optees’ allowance. 
 

3. 
 

A scheme must also set out which members of the authority are to be entitled to 
pensions under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme; and whether the basic 
allowance or the special responsibility allowance, or both, may be treated as amounts in 
respect of which such pensions are payable. 
 

4. The Regulations place a duty upon the Council to establish an Independent 
Remuneration Panel which is required to report with recommendations on the levels of 
allowances payable, the means by which those levels may be adjusted, whether any 
allowances may be backdated, and which members may have access to the Local 
Government Superannuation Scheme.  The Council must have regard to the Panel’s 
recommendations before making or amending a scheme of members’ allowances. 
 

 The Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
 

5. At the first meeting of the Shadow Council in April 2008 the Interim Chief Executive was 
authorised to appoint two members from each of the Independent Remuneration Panels 
of Bedfordshire County Council, Mid Bedfordshire District Council and South 
Bedfordshire District Council for the purpose of making recommendations to the Shadow 
Council (i) on a Members’ Allowances’ Scheme for the year commencing 1 April 2008, 
and (ii) on a Scheme for the year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

6. The Panel’s report and recommendations in respect of the year commencing 1 April 
2008 were submitted to the Shadow Council on 8 July 2008, where they were adopted 
with minor amendments.  
 

7 The Panel met again on 26 September and 10 October 2009 to take written and verbal 
evidence from members on, and to consider a scheme of members’ allowances for the 
year commencing 1 April 2009. This includes both the period between 1 April and 8 
June 2009 (on which date the newly elected councillors will take office), during which the 
shadow authority will continue in being with 124 members, and the period following the 
election of the new 66-member authority.  
 

8. The Panel issued its final report and recommendations in December, including a draft 
Scheme for the shadow authority to consider. A summary of the allowances 
recommended by the Panel is attached at Appendix A.1. The Panel’s covering report 
giving its rationale for making its recommendations is attached at Appendix B.  
 

 Consideration by the Shadow Executive 
 

9. The Shadow Executive on 20 January 2009 considered the financial implications of the 
Panel’s recommendations and recommended: 
 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.4 

 “that the Shadow Council: 
 
(a) notes that the Shadow Executive, having taken careful consideration of the 

recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel and additional 
information provided since the review, would support a revised scheme of 
members’ allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2009, including a basic 
allowance of £11,220 and additional special responsibility allowances for 
specified Vice-Chairmen and for Assistant Portfolio Holders, as set out in the 
amended summary circulated at the meeting by the Portfolio Holder for 
Corporate Resources, and subject also to a flat rate Special Responsibility 
Allowance of £2,525 (i.e. 7.5% of the Leader’s allowance) for each Minority 
Group Leader, at an estimated total cost of £1,200,000. 

 
(b) notes that the Shadow Executive endorses the conclusion of the Independent 

Remuneration Panel that all Central Bedfordshire Councillors should be given 
access to the Local Government Pension Scheme, based on the sum of 
members’ basic and Special Responsibilities Allowances, at an estimated cost of 
£75,000.  

 
(c) approves a scheme of members’ allowances for the year commencing 1 April 

2009 as proposed by the Shadow Executive at (a) and (b) above.” 
 

10. 
 

The Executive noted that the Minority Group Leader’s allowance should apply to any 
Group having at least 7 members, as recommended by the Independent Remuneration 
Panel. 
  

11. A summary of the revised Scheme proposed by the Shadow Executive is attached at 
Appendix A.2. 
 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.5 

 
 Draft Scheme of Members’ Allowances 2009/10 

 
12. A draft Scheme including details of the recommended approved duties, travel and 

subsistence allowances and dependants’ carers’ allowance is attached at Appendix C 
for the Shadow Council’s consideration. The rates of basic allowance and special 
responsibility allowance, and the duties for which special responsibility allowances would 
be payable, are as proposed by the Shadow Executive on 20 January 2009. 
 

13. The costs of adopting the Scheme in full in 2009/10 are: 
  £ 
 (a) Basic Allowance 740,520 
 (b) Special Responsibility Allowances 328,887 
 (c) NI Employer’s Contributions 120,000 
 (d) Dependants’ carers’ allowance (estimate) 2,000 
 (e) Travel and subsistence allowances (estimate) 33,000 
 (f) Co-optees’ allowance (estimate) 5,250 
 (g) Civic allowances  14,025 
 SUB-TOTAL 1,243,682 
 (h) Superannuation (estimated employer’s 

contribution, assuming 33% take-up) 
75,000 

      TOTAL 1,318,682 
   
14. The overall cost of £1,318,682 in 2009/10 compares with a total cost of £1,371,123 in 

2008/09 across the three legacy authorities (the allowances schemes currently operated 
by the two district councils plus 60% of the County Council’s current scheme), being a 
reduction of £52,441 or 3.82%. 
 

 Co-optees’, Travel/Subsistence and Carers’ Allowances 
 

15. The scheme as recommended by the Panel provided for the payment of a co-opted 
member’s allowance to any person appointed to a committee or panel of Central 
Bedfordshire Council. While paragraph 9.1 of the Panel’s covering report includes 
mention of independent members of both schools admission and exclusion appeals and 
adoption, fostering and permanence panels, these are not co-opted members serving on 
Council committees and will be subject to different payment arrangements. They have 
therefore not been included in the final draft Scheme attached. 
 

16. The sum of £5,250 provided in the budget for co-opted members’ allowances is an 
estimate based on the recommended rate of £75 for a half day and £150 for a full day, 
and may increase according to the number of meetings actually held. The cost of travel, 
subsistence and dependants’ carers’ allowances will likewise vary according to actual 
mileage, usage, etc. 
 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.6 

 
 Access to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme  

 
17. The Pensions Regulations 2003 amended the Local Government Pension Scheme 

Regulations 1997 to enable members of local authorities to be eligible to belong to the 
pension scheme, acting on the recommendations of its Independent Remuneration 
Panel.  In essence councillors who joined the scheme would be treated as employees 
and benefits would be payable according to their period of membership of the scheme.   
 

18. The councillors’ “pay” in any year may include basic allowance and any special 
responsibility allowance.  The Panel's role is to recommend which members in the local 
authority are to be entitled to pensions, and also whether basic allowance, or special 
responsibility allowance, or both, should be treated as amounts in respect of which 
pensions are to be payable.  An eligible councillor would have to positively elect to join 
the pension scheme. The retirement age for a councillor under the scheme is 70. 
 

19. Any member is eligible to participate in the scheme if the local authority so decides and 
such members have been recommended by the Independent Remuneration Panel.  The 
government, in introducing the 2003 regulations, indicated that the provisions for 
pensions take into account the commitment of local councillors, and their contribution to 
public life.  Members of local authorities may have lower personal or occupational 
pension provision than they might otherwise have had, due to missing out on full-time 
employment, promotion or other opportunities on account of their public duties.  The 
pensions regulations sought to address any disincentive from serving in local politics. 
 

20. The entitlement for councillors to join the Local Government Pension Scheme varies in 
the three legacy authorities. Bedfordshire County Council allows its councillors to join 
the pension scheme and 17 out of 52 are currently in membership. Six former 
councillors have deferred benefits. There is no similar provision for councillors who 
serve on either Mid Bedfordshire or South Bedfordshire District Council. 
  

21. If it is agreed that all Central Bedfordshire councillors should have access to the Local 
Government Superannuation Scheme, provision will be required for employer’s 
contributions. The cost of doing so will depend on take-up, which is clearly unpredictable 
in advance. A provisional sum of £75,000 has been included in the draft budget at this 
stage, assuming 33% take-up based on current County Council experience. 
 



Agenda  
Item  
No. 6 

 

6.7 

 
 Retrospective Amendment to the 2008/09 Scheme – Members Appointed as 

Observers to the Police and Fire Authorities 
 

22. At the time the Shadow Council approved the Central Bedfordshire Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for the year commencing 1 April 2008 the arrangements for 
Member representation on the Police and Fire Authorities were not known. It was 
subsequently confirmed that in both cases Central Bedfordshire Members were to be 
appointed as observers until 31 March 2009. Whilst not having a vote (unless already 
appointed by the County Council as a voting member), those members would have a 
say in debating the Police and Fire Authorities’ budget proposals for 2009/10.  
 

23. At the time of writing, the allocation of seats to the Police Authority has still not been 
settled but five Central Bedfordshire Members have been appointed as observers to the 
Fire Authority, only one of whom is an existing County Council Member.   
 

24. The Panel was aware that existing Members of the Police and Fire Authorities received 
allowances from those authorities (as will voting members from 1 April 2009). While the 
Police and Fire Authorities’ own allowances schemes do not provide for the 
remuneration of Members appointed to serve as observers during the period  to 31 
March 2009, the Independent Remuneration Panel took the view that they should be 
similarly remunerated. Paragraph 19 of the Panel’s report gives details. 
 

25. If approved, the allowance will be paid pro rata to the period of actual appointment 
based on the following annual rates: 
 
   Bedfordshire Police Authority - £8,487 
   Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority - £2,856 
 
Regulations allow for such amendments to be backdated to the beginning of the year in 
which they are made. 
 

 
 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 

None 

 
Appendices: 
 
Appendix A.1: Summary of Recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
Appendix A.2: Revised Scheme Proposed by Shadow Executive on 20 January 2009 
Appendix B: Report and Recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel 
Appendix C: Draft Members’ Allowances Scheme for the year commencing 1 April 2009 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.8 

Appendix A.1 
 

 
Members’ Allowances Scheme 2009/10 
Summary of Recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel  
 

 £ p.a. 
(all pro rata to 

period of 
holding office) 

Basic Allowance: (all councillors)  

 1 April 2009 -  7 June 2009 
(124 councillors) 

5,269 

 8 June 2009 – 31 March 2010 
(66 councillors) 

9,900 

Special Responsibility Allowances:  
(max. one per member except for (a) Deputy Leader if 
appointed to another position and (b) Licensing/ 
Regulation Committee Chairman if the same person) 

 

 Leader (basic allowance x 3) 29,700 

  Percentage 
of Leader’s 
SRA 

 

 Deputy Leader 15% 4,455 

 Portfolio Holders 60% 17,820 

 Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Chairman 

40% 11,880 

 Development Mgmt. Committee 
Chairman 

40% 11,880 

 Audit Committee Chairman 30% 8,910 

 General Purposes Committee Chairman 15% 4,455 

 Standards Cttee Chairman (independent) 15% 4,455 

 Licensing Committee Chairman 7.5% 2,227.50 

 Regulation Committee Chairman 7.5% 2,227.50 

 Luton & S. Beds Joint Committee 
Chairman (while a CBC member) 

40% 11,880 

 Lead Member of TTF (if continuing after 1/4/09) 3,655 

 Member of TTF (if continuing after 1/4/09) 1,828 

 Minority Group Leaders 148 for each 
member of the 
group 
(minimum of 7 
members to 
qualify) 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.9 

Civic Allowances:  

 Chairman of the Council (basic allowance x 100%) 9,900 

 Vice-Chairman of the Council (basic allce x 25%) 2,475 

Travel Allowances:   

 Car or motorcycle (all engine sizes) 46.9p per mile 

 Addition for one Member passenger 12p per mile 

 Addition for each further Member passenger 6p per mile 

 Pedal cycle 20p per mile 

 Public transport Actual cost 

 Taxi (only in cases of urgency or where no public 
transport is reasonably available) 

Actual cost 

Subsistence Allowances:  

 Breakfast 6.28 

 Lunch 8.65 

 Tea 3.42 

 Dinner 10.72 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance:  

 Child care & non-specialist care £5.73 per hour 
(national 
minimum 
wage) 

 Specialist care Up to £17.19 
per hour 

Co-opted Members’ Allowance:  

 Up to and including 4 hours’ duration £75.00 per 
meeting 

 Over 4 hours’ duration £150.00 per 
meeting 

Access to Local Government Pension Scheme:  

 Based on basic allowance recommended 

 Based on special responsibility allowances recommended 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.10 

Appendix A.2 
 

 
Members’ Allowances Scheme 2009/10 
Revised Scheme Proposed by Shadow Executive on 20 January 2009 
 

 £ p.a. 
(all pro rata to 

period of 
holding office) 

Basic Allowance: (all councillors)  

 1 April 2009 -  7 June 2009 
(124 councillors) 

5,971 

 8 June 2009 – 31 March 2010 
(66 councillors) 

11,220 

Special Responsibility Allowances:  
(max. one per member except for (a) Deputy Leader if 
appointed to another position and (b) Licensing/ 
Regulation Committee Chairman if the same person) 

 

 Leader (basic allowance x 3) 33,660 

  Percentage of 
Leader’s SRA 

 

 Deputy Leader 15% 5,049 

 Portfolio Holders 60% 20,196 

 Portfolio Holder Assistants 7.5% 2,525 

 Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Chairman 

32.5% 10,940 

 Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Vice-Chairman 

7.5% 2,525 

 Development Mgmt. Committee 
Chairman 

40% 13,464 

 Development Mgmt. Committee 
Vice-Chairman 

7.5% 2,525 

 Audit Committee Chairman 32.5% 10,940 

 Audit Committee Vice-Chairman 7.5% 2,525 

 General Purposes Committee 
Chairman 

15% 5,049 

 Standards Cttee Chairman 
(independent) 

15% 5,049 

 Licensing Committee Chairman 7.5% 2,525 

 Regulation Committee Chairman 7.5% 2,525 

 Luton & S. Beds Joint Committee 
Chairman (while a CBC member) 

40% 13,464 

 Lead Member of TTF (if continuing after 1/4/09) 3,655 

 Member of TTF (if continuing after 1/4/09) 1,828 

 Minority Group Leaders 2,525 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.11 

Civic Allowances:  

 Chairman of the Council (basic allowance x 100%) 11,220 

 Vice-Chairman of the Council (basic allce x 25%) 2,805 

Travel Allowances:   

 Car or motorcycle (all engine sizes) 46.9p per mile 

 Addition for one Member passenger 12p per mile 

 Addition for each further Member passenger 6p per mile 

 Pedal cycle 20p per mile 

 Public transport Actual cost 

 Taxi (only in cases of urgency or where no public 
transport is reasonably available) 

Actual cost 

Subsistence Allowances:  

 Breakfast 6.28 

 Lunch 8.65 

 Tea 3.42 

 Dinner 10.72 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance:  

 Child care & non-specialist care £5.73 per hour 
(national 

minimum wage) 

 Specialist care Up to £17.19 
per hour 

Co-opted Members’ Allowance:  

 Up to and including 4 hours’ duration £75.00 per 
meeting 

 Over 4 hours’ duration £150.00 per 
meeting 

Access to Local Government Pension Scheme:  

 Based on basic allowance recommended 

 Based on special responsibility allowances recommended 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 12 

Appendix B 
 

 
 Report and Recommendations of the  

 
Independent Remuneration Panel –  

 
Scheme of Members’ Allowance for the Year  

 
Commencing 1 April 2009 

 

 

1 Introduction 
 

 1.1 At the first meeting of Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council, held on 10 
April 2008, authority was given to establishing an Independent 
Remuneration Panel for the purpose of making recommendations as to 
a Scheme of Members’ Allowances for the Shadow Council for the year 
commencing 1 April 2008 and for Central Bedfordshire Council for the 
year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

 1.2 The three constituent authorities each nominated two Members of their 
own Independent Remuneration Panels to serve on the Central 
Bedfordshire Panel. 
 

 1.3 The persons appointed to the Central Bedfordshire Independent 
Remuneration Panel were:- 
 

  Person Appointed 
 

Nominating Authority 

  Mr C Bell Mid Bedfordshire District Council 
  Dr R Bender South Bedfordshire District Council 
  Mrs K Johnson Bedfordshire County Council 
  Mr G Lambert Bedfordshire County Council 
  Mrs P Mathieson South Bedfordshire District Council 
  Mr A Painter M.B.E. Mid Bedfordshire District Council 
   
 1.4 Before the panel met on 4 June 2008 to consider recommendations for 

the period of the Shadow Council, for the year commencing 1 April 
2008, the under-mentioned documents were provided to all members of 
the Panel with a request that they be retained for use in connection with 
consideration of the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for the year 
commencing 1 April 2008 and for the year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

  (a) A summary of the Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State concerning The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) 
(England) Regulations 2003. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 13 

  (b) A suggested Members’ Allowances Scheme prepared to indicate 
the provisions that may be included within a Scheme of 
Allowances, such as:- 
 

   •  Renunciation. 

   •  Part-year entitlements. 

   •  Suspension/Repayment of Allowances. 

   •  Claims and Payments. 

   •  Approved Duties (for which Travelling and Subsistence 
allowances would be payable). 
 

   The suggested Scheme also included the following allowances that 
may be paid in accordance with the Regulations, although 
monetary values were not included:- 
 

   •  Basic Allowance – payable to all Members of the authority. 

   •  Special Responsibility Allowance – payable to those 
Members holding a position of significant responsibility. 

   •  Travelling and Subsistence Allowances 

   •  Dependants’ Carers’ Allowances 

   •  Co-opted Members’ Allowances 
 

  (c) A Summary of the main points of the Schemes of Members’ 
Allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2008, as adopted by 
Bedfordshire County Council, Mid Bedfordshire District Council 
and South Bedfordshire District Council. 
 

  (d) Information issued by the Local Government Association 
concerning the results of a survey conducted in the winter of 2006, 
setting out the average level of each type of allowance paid by 
authorities, both on a regional level and according to local authority 
type. 
 

  (e) A copy of the current Members’ Allowances Scheme of 
Bedfordshire County Council. 
 

  (f) A copy of the current Members’ Allowances Scheme of Mid 
Bedfordshire District Council. 
 

  (g) A copy of the current Members’ Allowances Scheme of South 
Bedfordshire District Council. 
 

  (h) Background notes on the Scheme of Members’ Allowances 
adopted by Bedfordshire County Council.  
 

  (i) Background notes on the Scheme of Members’ Allowances 
adopted by Mid Bedfordshire District Council, including details of 
the formula used by the Panel to calculate the Basic Allowance.  
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 14 

  (j) Background notes on the Scheme of Members’ Allowances 
adopted by South Bedfordshire District Council, including details of 
the formula used by the Panel to calculate the Basic Allowance.  
 

  (k) Details of the level of allowances paid by all other unitary 
authorities within the Family Group into which the Audit 
Commission have placed Central Bedfordshire. 
 

2 The Report of the Panel 
 

 2.1 This report sets out the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel concerning the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 
Central Bedfordshire Council for the year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

 2.2 The Panel were aware that Central Bedfordshire Council would come 
into being on 1 April 2009, being the day on which Mid Bedfordshire and 
South Bedfordshire District Councils together with Bedfordshire County 
Council would be wound up and dissolved. 
 

 2.3 The Panel noted that the 124 Councillors of the predecessor authorities 
who represented the electoral areas that would be within Central 
Bedfordshire would continue to be Members of the Shadow Council until 
the fourth day after the local government election day in 2009.  By the 
time the second meeting of the Panel was held on 10 October 2008, it 
was known that the Secretary of State had placed an Order before 
Parliament to postpone the ordinary local government elections due to 
be held on 7 May 2009 and for them to be combined with the European 
Parliamentary elections on 4 June.  As a result it was known that the 
membership of the Council would not reduce to 66 Members until the 
ordinary elections had taken place on 4 June. 
 

 2.4 The Panel were aware that the Scheme under consideration would 
commence, in accordance with The Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 on 1 April 2009, but that the 
committee structure of the new authority may not be fully established 
until the first annual meeting of the Council after the elections held in 
June 2009.  The Panel were content that this was not a material 
consideration for their deliberations as the Scheme of Members’ 
Allowances would provide for the payment of allowances on a part-year 
basis, with the payment being made pro rata to the number of days for 
which the office or position was held. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 15 

3 The Panel Meeting held 26 September 2008. 
 

 The following Panel Members and officers were in attendance at the meeting: 
 

 Mr C Bell 
 Mrs K Johnson 
 Mr G Lambert 
 Mrs P Mathieson 
 Mr A Painter M.B.E. 
 Stephen Cooke  

 
Electoral/Members’ Services Manager, Mid Bedfordshire 
District Council 

 Rob Mills Committee and Scrutiny Manager, South Bedfordshire 
District Council 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Dr R Bender. 
 

 Mr C Bell was appointed Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 
 

4 Additional Information provided to the Panel 
 

 4.1 Prior to the meeting all Members of the Shadow Council were invited to 
make a written submission to the Panel concerning the Scheme of 
Members’ Allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2009, and, if they 
so wished, to attend the meeting to explain their submission.  Those 
Councillors who were Members of both a District Council and the 
County Council were specifically requested to give their estimate of the 
likely time commitment for Members of Central Bedfordshire Council. 
Councillors with dual membership were considered better placed to 
provide an estimate as to the likely time commitment of a Member of the 
new Unitary Authority.  The Leaders of Political Groups represented on 
the Shadow Council were also invited to make any submission and/or 
make a personal presentation to the Panel. 
    

 4.2 Written submissions were received from three Members who served on 
a District Council only and three Members who represented both a 
District Council and the County Council.  A submission was also 
received from the Leader of the Labour Group. Copies of all 
submissions received were provided to the Panel. 
  

 4.3 In addition the Panel were provided with the following information:- 
 

  (a) The Draft Role Descriptions that were under consideration by the 
Member Development Champions.  The Role descriptions included 
the role and responsibilities of Ward Councillors together with 
those posts with special responsibilities. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 16 

  (b) An update to the Members’ Allowances paid by the other Unitary 
Authorities within the Audit Commission’s Family Group.  The 
figures had been updated to show increases for the year 
2008/2009 as not all authorities had approved increases to their 
Scheme at the time that the comparison document was prepared 
for the Panel when they met to consider their recommendations for 
a Scheme of Allowances for the Shadow Council for the year 
commencing 1 April 2008. 
 

  (c) Details of the Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee and 
the special responsibility allowance that had been paid to its 
Chairman by South Bedfordshire District Council during the year 
commencing 1 April 2008 and previously, when the Chairman was 
a representative of South Bedfordshire District Council, which 
arrangement was likely to continue for some time after 1 April 
2009. 
 

  (d) Details of the Civic Allowances paid by the three existing 
Authorities to their Chairman and Vice-Chairman to meet the 
expenses of those offices. Whilst this allowance was not covered 
by The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) 
Regulations 2003 and did not form a part of the Scheme of 
Members Allowances, the Panel were asked to comment upon the 
level of these allowances as from 1 April 2009. 
 

 4.4 The Panel then heard presentations from the Leader of the Council and 
the Leader of the Labour Group concerning the Scheme of Allowances 
for the period commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

 4.5 The final presentation to the Panel was made by Councillor Male, on 
behalf of the Conservative Group, who tabled a detailed document 
proposing that the Scheme of Allowances be linked to the remuneration 
package of the Chief Executive.  The submission contained a detailed 
proposal as to how the salary package of the Chief Executive may be 
used to provide a figure to calculate the level of the basic allowance 
paid to all Members and also for the special responsibility allowance 
paid to the Leader of the Council.  The submission also provided details 
as to how the special responsibility allowance of the Leader of the 
Council may be used to set the level of the allowance for all other 
positions for which a special responsibility allowance is recommended. 
 

 4.6 Having heard the presentations and considered the written submissions 
of Members, the Panel felt that it was necessary to consider a number of 
matters of general principle before considering recommendations as to 
the level of any of the allowances within the Scheme. 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 17 

5 The Scheme in General 
 

 5.1 The Panel considered how the level of the basic allowance may be 
calculated and discounted the proposal made on behalf of the 
Conservative Group, to set allowances as a proportion of the 
remuneration package of the Chief Executive.  Members of the Panel 
were unaware of any other salary or scale of allowances that was linked 
to the payment of a chief executive. It was considered that such an 
approach may appear arbitrary and lack transparency. For that reason 
the Panel decided to adopt a formula by which the basic allowance may 
be calculated.  This approach was considered to be both open and 
transparent.  It was further decided that the formula should take account 
of the likely time commitment of all Members and the addition of a 
monetary value would then produce a figure for the allowance.  
  

 5.2 The Panel were conscious of the Statutory Guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State which emphasised that it was important that some 
element of the work of Members should continue to be voluntary and 
that some hours are not remunerated.  The guidance stated “this must 
be balanced against the need to ensure that financial loss is not 
suffered by elected members, and further, that despite the input 
required, people are encouraged to come forward as elected members 
and their service to the community is retained”.  After careful 
consideration the Panel felt that a reduction of one third, to reflect the 
voluntary nature of the work of Members, would be appropriate. 
 

 5.3 The Panel also felt that it would be appropriate to use the Local 
Government Association’s Daily Rate figure to provide the monetary 
value for the calculation formula.  The figure had been set by the Local 
Government Association to compensate members attending day-long 
meetings and had been based upon the median annual increase in 
average pay rates for full-time employees, as measured by the Annual 
Survey of Hours and Earnings.  The daily rate figure for 2008/2009 was 
£142.77.    
   

 5.4 The Panel concluded that the formula used to calculate the basic 
allowance should be; the average number of hours committed by 
Members divided by 7.5 to reflect the working day, multiplied by 52 
(weeks per year), multiplied by the Local Government Association daily 
rate and reduced by one third to reflect the voluntary nature of the 
duties.  Given the limited time remaining at this stage of the meeting, the 
Chairman undertook to produce, from the evidence provided in 
Members’ submissions and presentations, the average number of hours 
likely to be required of all Members of the Unitary Authority and report 
on this to the next meeting of the Panel. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 18 

 5.5 The Panel then considered the question of the reduction in the number 
of Members following the local government elections in 2009.  It was 
considered that it would be appropriate to calculate the basic allowance 
on the basis of the 66 Members that would be elected on 4 June 2009. 
The Panel felt that the monthly cost of the basic allowance for the 66 
newly elected Members should be used as the monthly cost for payment 
of basic allowance for the period in which there were 124 Members. The 
total monthly cost being divided by 124.  The Panel considered that this 
approach was reasonable as there would be many more Members to 
carry out the representational role prior to the elections being held and 
the monthly cost of the basic allowance would be the same both before 
and after the local government elections. 
 

 5.6 For Special Responsibility Allowances the Panel felt that there should be 
no more than one such allowance paid to any Member.  However due to 
the possibility of the Deputy Leader of the Council being a Portfolio 
Holder, the Panel felt that there should be exceptions to this general 
principle.  The exceptions agreed by the Panel are set out in paragraph 
14.4(i) to this report. 
 

 5.7 The Panel noted that information had not been received from all 
authorities within the Audit Commission’s Family Group concerning 
access for Members to the Local Government Pension Scheme.  It was 
therefore requested that further information to be obtained on this 
subject for consideration at its next meeting. 
 

6 Travel and Subsistence Allowances 
 

 6.1 The Panel recalled that in making recommendations to the Shadow 
Council with regard to Travelling and Subsistence Allowances for the 
year commencing 1 April 2008, it had been agreed to set rates in 
accordance with those paid to local government staff, as shown below:- 
 

   Mileage Allowances 
 

   Car or Motorcycle Engine Size 
 

Per Mile 

   Not exceeding 999 cc 42.9p 
   1000 to 1199 cc inclusive 46.9p 
   Over 1200 cc and over 58.7p 

 
   In addition an additional allowance of 3p per mile where another 

Member, to whom a travelling allowance would be payable, is 
conveyed and an additional 2p for a second and each subsequent 
Member. 
 
 
 
  



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 19 

   Subsistence Allowances 
 

 

   Breakfast allowance £6.28 
   Lunch allowance £8.65 
   Tea Allowance £3.42 
   Dinner allowance £10.72 

 
   Claims for subsistence allowances are regulated as to the number 

of hours away from home and time of the day, as detailed within 
Schedule 3 to the Scheme of Members’ Allowances. 
 

 6.2 The Panel felt it appropriate that allowances for Members should be 
linked to the rates paid to staff as fixed nationally by the National Joint 
Council for Local Government Staff.  It was noted however that the 
Scheme of Members’ Allowances adopted by Bedfordshire County 
Council fixed the payment of all mileage allowances at the figure 
specified for vehicles with an engine size up to 1199 cc.  The Panel felt 
that for environmental reasons the Council should be recommended to 
adopt this approach to the payment of Members’ mileage allowances. 
The Panel recommended that mileage rates should be as shown in sub-
paragraph (a) below but that as an incentive to car sharing, the Panel 
also recommended that allowances for conveying other Members on 
approved duties should be significantly increased to those shown in 
sub-paragraph (b) below:- 
 

   Mileage Allowances 
 

  (a) Irrespective of car or motorcycle engine size 
 

46.9p per mile 

  (b) An additional allowance of 12p per mile where another Member, to 
whom a travelling allowance would be payable, is conveyed and 
an additional 6p for a second and each subsequent Member. 
  

7 Approved Duties 
 

 7.1 The Panel noted that Schedule 2 to the Members’ Allowances Scheme 
for the year commencing 1 April 2008, listed the duties for which 
Members may claim travelling and subsistence allowances.  The 
inclusion of the information within the Schedule had been to take 
account of the exceptional circumstances that existed as a result of the 
creation of the Shadow Council and had excluded reference to the 
appointment of Members to serve on outside bodies. The Panel also 
noted that Transitional Task Forces had been included within the 
Schedule for the period of the Shadow Council, but that Task Forces 
and similar bodies should be included within Schedule 2 for the year 
commencing 1 April 2009, in case such bodies were established by the 
new Authority. 
  



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 20 

 7.2  As a result it was recommended that the list of approved duties within 
Schedule 2 to the Scheme of Members’ Allowances be amended for the 
year commencing 1 April 2009 as follows: 
 

  (a) That all references to the word “Shadow” be removed from the 
Scheme and that the word “Transitional” be omitted before the 
words “Task Forces”. 
  

  (b) That the list of approved duties include a provision to enable the 
payment of both travel and subsistence allowances incurred in 
connection with attendance at all outside bodies where the 
Member is attending as the Council’s duly appointed 
representative (whether appointed for a fixed term or authorised 
on an ad hoc basis), subject to no such allowances being claimed 
by the Member from the outside body concerned. 
 

8 Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance 
 

 8.1 The Panel noted that the Shadow Council when considering the 
Scheme of Allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2008, amended 
the recommendation made by the Panel in relation to Dependants’ 
Carers’ Allowances so that the maximum hourly allowance for care of a 
non-specialist nature, be linked to the national minimum wage figure, 
being £5.52 at 1 April 2008, rising to £5.73 as from 1 October 2008.  
 

 8.2 As there was no evidence to suggest that the provisions contained 
within the Scheme of Allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2008, 
were inappropriate the Panel recommended the following:- 
 

  (a) that where care is required for children or is of a non-specialist 
nature for dependant relatives; the maximum hourly payment be at 
the rate set and from time to time amended by the Department for 
Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform as the National 
Minimum Wage for workers aged 22 and over, being the sum of 
£5.73 per hour as from 1 October 2008; and,  
 

  (b) that where specialist care services are required, and the Director of 
Corporate Resources is satisfied that such care is necessary, the 
maximum hourly rate be up to three times the rate for non-
specialist care (£17.19 per hour as from 1 October 2008). 
 

9 Co-opted Members Allowance 
 

 9.1 The Panel noted that Co-opted Members would be required to serve on 
the following bodies:- 
 

  (a) Standards Committee. 
  (b) The Overview and Scrutiny Committee dealing with education 

matters, including representatives of the Church and Parent 
Governors. 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 21 

  (c) School Appeal and Exclusion Panels. 
  (d) Adoption, Fostering, and Permanence Panels. 

 
 9.2 For the period of the Shadow Authority the only Co-opted Members 

were those appointed to the Standards Committee for whom an 
allowance of £120 per meeting or training event had been 
recommended and duly approved and adopted by the Shadow Council. 
 

 9.3 Given the increase in the number of Co-opted Members and the likely 
differences in time commitment depending on the body concerned, the 
Panel recommended the adoption of a more flexible approach to the 
payment of the allowance, to take into account the possible differences 
in the number and duration of meetings.  The Panel noted for example 
that School Appeal and Exclusion Panels often met for a full day to 
consider a number of appeals. 
 

 9.4 For this reason the Panel felt that the allowance for Co-opted Members 
should be paid according to attendance and also that the rate paid 
should depend upon the duration of the meeting, as shown below:- 
 

  (a) For a meeting of up to 4 hours duration £75 
  (b) For a meeting lasting for more than 4 hours £150 

 
10 Adjournment of the Meeting 

 
 10.1 At this time the meeting was adjourned until the 10 October, a date that 

had already been set in case the Panel was unable to complete its 
deliberations at a single meeting. 
 

11 The Panel Meeting held 10 October 2008. 
 

 The following Panel Members and officers were in attendance at the meeting: 
 

 Mr C Bell (Chairman) 
 Mrs K Johnson 
 Mr G Lambert 
 Mrs P Mathieson 
 Mr A Painter M.B.E. 
 Stephen Cooke  

 
Electoral/Members’ Services Manager, Mid Bedfordshire 
District Council 

 Rob Mills Committee and Scrutiny Manager, South Bedfordshire 
District Council 
 

 An apology for absence was received from Dr R Bender. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 22 

12 Additional Information provided to the Panel 
 

 12.1 The Panel was informed that the Secretary of State had placed before 
Parliament an Order to combine the local government elections due to 
be held on 7 May with the European Parliamentary elections due to be 
held in June 2009.  The first election of Councillors to Central 
Bedfordshire Council would therefore not take place until 4 June 2009, 
with those elected taking office on 8 June. 
 

 12.2 A resume of the decisions taken at the meeting of the Panel held on 26 
September was circulated and included additional information, in 
accordance with the request of the Panel, relating to access to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme for those Councillors who were 
Members of authorities within the Audit Commission’s Family Group 
that Central Bedfordshire will join. 
  

13 Basic Allowance 
 

 13.1 The Chairman reported that he had collated the information relating to 
time commitment provided by Members to the meeting of the Panel 
held on 26 September. Following minor changes, the figures set out in 
the table below were agreed: 
 

  Activity 
 

Weekly 
 

Monthly 
 

Quarterly 
 

  Attend Full Council Meeting (inc. travel time)   4 

  Prepare for Council Meeting   2 

  Group Meeting   5 

  Attend Committee, Sub-Committee, Panel, 
etc. Meetings (inc. travel time)  8  

  Prepare for Committee, Sub-Committee, 
Panel, etc. Meetings  4  

  Constituency Surgeries   3 

  Constituency Casework (includes e-mails, 
telephone calls, etc with residents & 
ward/parish organisations) 7.5   

  Reading agendas, minutes, reports & other 
papers 2.5   

  Other Bodies ( e.g. school governor)  6  

  Total Hours 10 18 14 

      

    x52 x12 x4 

      

  Total Hours Annually 520 216 56 

  Total Hours (520 + 216 + 56) = 792    

  Weekly Average (792 / 52)   15.2 

      



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 23 

 13.2 The Panel therefore agreed that the average time figure to be added to 
the formula constructed at the adjourned meeting should be 15 hours 
per week which would provide a basic allowance of £9,900, calculated 
as shown below: 
 

   Average hours = 15 
   Divide by hours in average working day =7.5 
   Multiply by 52 weeks 
   Multiply by Local government Association Daily Rate £142.77 
   Less one third to reflect voluntary nature of the duties 

 
 13.3 The Panel then compared the figure produced by the formula against 

the average basic allowance paid by all other members of the Audit 
Commission’s Family Group.  It was noted that the figure of £9,900 was 
greater than the Family Group average figure of £8,054. The highest 
basic allowance in the Group being £11,976 and the lowest being 
£5,980. It was also noted that the Family Group figures were for the 
year commencing 1 April 2008 and would be likely to increase, in line 
with the rate of inflation, for the year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

 13.4  The Panel then compared the figure produced by the formula with the 
basic allowances paid in 2008/2009 by the three constituent authorities, 
details of which are shown below: 
 

  Authority 
 

Basic Allowance – 2008/2009 

  Bedfordshire County £9,385 
  Mid Bedfordshire District  £6,450 
  South Bedfordshire District  

 
£3,838 

 13.5 It was noted that the figure of £9,900 was greater than the basic 
allowance paid by Bedfordshire County Council for the current financial 
year which the Panel considered to be appropriate given the additional 
services for which the Unitary Authority would be responsible.  The 
Panel also took into consideration that the electoral arrangements for 
the unitary authority provided at least two councillors per ward whereas 
the County Council’s electoral divisions were in the main represented 
by a single councillor. 
 

 13.6 Finally for the purpose of comparability the Panel considered the 
allowances paid to Members by the Bedfordshire Police Authority and 
the Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority which were as set 
out in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 24 

  Authority Basic Allowance Special Responsibility 
Allowances 
 

  Bedfordshire Police £8,487 Chairman £16,974 
  Bedfordshire and 

Luton Combined Fire 
 

£2,856 Chairman £14,277 

 13.7 The Panel noted particularly the level of the basic allowance paid by 
the Police and Fire Authorities and given the much wider role of a 
unitary councillor in comparison, felt that these figures supported the 
level of the basic allowance that had been calculated in respect of 
Central Bedfordshire by the formula adopted.  
 

 13.8 The Panel therefore recommended that the basic allowance paid to all 
Members for the period commencing on the fourth day after the local 
government election day on 4 June 2009, be £9,900 per annum, paid 
pro rata to the number of days served.  The Panel also recommended 
that for the period from 1 April 2009 until the fourth day after the 
election day, based on the principle agreed at paragraph 5.5 above, 
each Member be paid the sum of £5,269 per annum, pro rata to the 
number of days served. 
 

14 Special Responsibility Allowances 
 

 14.1 The Panel noted the criteria within the statutory guidance concerning 
the payment of special responsibility allowances which stated, that a 
local authority may make provision within its scheme for the payment of 
such allowances to those councillors who have significant 
responsibilities.  It was also noted that where one political group is in 
control, and where an authority has decided to pay special 
responsibility allowances, the authority must make provision for the 
payment of a special responsibility allowance to at least one member of 
a minority group. 
 

 14.2 The Panel recalled that when considering the payment of special 
responsibility allowances for the period of the Shadow Council, the 
figure set for the Deputy Leader of the Council, reflected the 
exceptional circumstances that existed during the transition period, 
together with the unusually high number of Members. Whilst the 
Deputy Leader was not at that time associated with a portfolio, it was 
felt that the position would be highly influential in the creation of Central 
Bedfordshire Council and the special responsibility allowance, of 75% 
of the Leader’s allowance, recommended by the Panel reflected this.  
  



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 25 

 14.3 The Panel also recalled that in making its recommendations for all 
posts considered to have significant responsibilities, it was understood 
that  exceptional circumstances existed in creating a new authority 
within a one year period and for that reason the Panel had included 
within its report a caution that the recommendations for special 
responsibility allowances for the year of transition could not be taken as 
a guide or precedent as to the level of allowances that may be 
recommended for the year commencing 1 April 2009. 
 

 14.4 The Panel then referred to the Draft Role Descriptions that were under 
consideration by the Member Development Champions and gave 
consideration as to the posts for which the payment of a special 
responsibility allowance would be appropriate. The table below sets out 
the posts recommended by the Panel for the payment of this 
allowance. 
  

  (a) Leader of the Council 
  (b) Deputy Leader of the Council 
  (c) Portfolio Holders 
  (d) Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairmen 
  (e) Development Control Committee Chairman/Chairmen 
  (f) Audit Committee Chairman 
  (g) General Purposes Committee Chairman 
  (h) Standards Committee Chairman 
  (i) Licensing Committee Chairman 
  (j) Regulation Committee Chairman 
  (k) Minority Group Leaders 
  (l) Lead Members of Transitional Task Forces 
  (m) Members of Transitional Task Forces 
  (n) Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee Chairman  

 
  Notes 

 
  In determining the positions for which a special responsibility allowance 

was considered appropriate by reason of significant additional 
responsibility the Panel wished it to be noted: 
 

  (i) that an exception to the principle of paying only one special 
responsibility allowance to any Member be made in the case of 
the Deputy Leader of the Council and also any Member who may 
be appointed as Chairman of both the Licensing Committee and 
the Regulation Committee, 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 26 

  (ii) that whilst the Council remained undecided as to the number of 
Development Control Committees that should be established, the 
Panel felt that should there be two or more such Committees the 
responsibility of the Chairman of each would be at the same level 
as a Chairman appointed for a single Development Control 
Committee.  As a result the allowance for each Chairman of a 
Development Control Committee, should there be two or more, 
should be at the level indicated in paragraph 14.7 of this report. 
 

  (iii) that the allowance for the Chairman of the Standards Committee 
was recommended in the knowledge that the Chairman must be 
an Independent Co-opted Member and that the allowance in 
paragraph 14.7 below should be paid to the Chairman of the 
Committee and not the allowance mentioned in paragraph 9.4 
above. 
 

  (iv) that the allowances made available in the Scheme for the year 
commencing 1 April 2008, in respect of the Chairmen and 
Members of Transitional Task Forces, be retained within the 
Scheme of Allowances for the year commencing 1 April 2009, in 
case the work of those bodies should continue after that date. 
 

  (v) that where the Chairman of the Luton and South Bedfordshire 
Joint Committee was a representative of Central Bedfordshire 
Council, a special responsibility allowance should be paid in view 
of the significant responsibility of this post which it was also noted 
rotated annually between the two constituent authorities. 
  

 14.5 Having determined the posts for which it was considered there was 
significant additional responsibility the Panel considered how the 
allowance may best be calculated.  It was decided that it would be 
appropriate to set the allowance for the Leader of the Council and then 
to set an allowance for each other post as a proportion of the Leader’s 
allowance. 
 

 14.6 After careful consideration the Panel determined that the value of the 
allowance paid to the Leader of the Council should be set at three 
times the level of the basic allowance making an allowance of £29,700. 
 

 14.7 The allowances for the other posts considered appropriate for the 
payment of a special responsibility allowance were as set out below: 
 

  Position Percentage of 
Leader’s allowance 

Value of 
Allowanc

e 
  Leader of the Council  £29,700 
  Deputy Leader of the Council 15% £4,455 
  Portfolio Holders 60% £17,820 
  Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Chairmen 
40% £11,880 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 27 

  Development Control Committee 
Chairman/Chairmen 

40% £11,880 

  Audit Committee Chairman 30% £8,910 
  General Purposes Committee 

Chairman 
15% £4,455 

  Standards Committee Chairman 15% £4,455 
  Licensing Committee Chairman 7.5% £2,227.5

0 
  Regulation Committee Chairman 7.5% £2,227.5

0 
  Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint 

Committee Chairman  
 

40% £11,880 

  Lead Members of Transitional Task 
Forces 

Continuation of the 
allowance set for the 
period of transition 

£3,655 

  Members of Transitional Task 
Forces 

As above £1,828 

  Minority Group Leaders See Note below  
     
  Note: 

 
In respect of the Leaders of Minority Groups the Panel felt that for a 
Minority Group Leader to qualify for a special responsibility allowance, 
they must have at least 7 Members within their Group.  The allowance 
would then be calculated on the basis of 0.5% of the Leader’s 
allowance (£148) for each Member of the Group. 
 

15 Access to the Local Government Pension Scheme 
 

 15.1 The Panel noted from the additional information that had been obtained 
from the 15 Unitary Councils within the Family Group, that all but four 
provided access for their Members to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme. Approximately one third of Members of the authorities had 
taken advantage of this opportunity.  It was also noted that of the 
constituent authorities, Bedfordshire County Council had provided 
access for its Members to the Pension Scheme whilst the two District 
Councils had not. 
 

 15.2 It was noted that the anticipated rate for employers’ contributions as 
from 1 April would be 21.9%. 
 

 15.3 The Panel considered the additional cost of employer contributions that 
would be required as a result of providing access for Members to the 
Local Government Pension Scheme but felt that it would be potentially 
discriminatory not to make this benefit available to those Members 
under the age of 70 years (statutory maximum age limit) who wished to 
become a “councillor member” of the Scheme. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 28 

 15.4 The Panel recommended that all Councillors of Central Bedfordshire be 
given the opportunity, subject to meeting the statutory age criteria, and 
that both basic and special responsibility allowances be taken into 
account for pension purposes. 
 

16 Civic Allowances 
 

 16.1 The Panel was advised that the payment of allowances to the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Council were not subject to the 
Members’ Allowances Regulations and were set and paid as civic 
allowances, in accordance with sections 3(5) and 5(4) to the Local 
Government Act 1972. The purpose of the allowances was explained to 
the Panel which was requested to consider making a recommendation 
to the Council as to the level of these civic allowances for the year 
commencing 1 April 2009. 
  

 16.2 The level of the allowances paid by the constituent authorities for the 
year commencing 1 April 2008 was noted as: 
 

  Authority 
 
 

Chairman’s 
Civic Allowance 

Vice-Chairman’s 
Civic Allowance 

  Bedfordshire County  £13,811 £5,520 
  Mid Bedfordshire District  £5,520 £1,560 
  South Bedfordshire District  

 
£8,565 £3,212 

 16.3 The Panel recommended that the level of the allowances be set by 
reference to the basic allowance paid to all Members and that the 
allowance for the Chairman be set at 100% of the basic allowance 
(£9,900) and that the allowance for the Vice-Chairman be set at 25% of 
the basic allowance (£2,475). 
  

17 Overview 
 

 17.1 Having completed its considerations the Panel wished it to be noted 
that it had not attempted to calculate the total cost of implementing its 
recommendations.  The Panel was aware that the budgetary 
implications of adopting the Scheme, as recommended, would be a 
matter for consideration by the Shadow Executive prior to the adoption 
of a Scheme being considered by the Shadow Council.  The Panel felt 
that the Shadow Executive would wish to ensure the affordability of the 
Scheme, measure the cost against those of the Schemes currently 
adopted by the constituent authorities and finally ensure that the 
recommendations were in harmony with any information contained 
within the bid made to the Government to create the Unitary Authority. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 29 

 17.2 The Panel also commented upon the difficulty of making its 
recommendations due to the lack of positive information as to the time 
commitment that will be required of the 66 Members of the new 
authority and to some degree the level of responsibility for each of the 
posts for which a special responsibility allowance had been 
recommended.  For those reasons the Panel felt that information 
should be collected during the first year of operation of the new 
authority to enable a fundamental review of the Scheme to be carried 
out before recommendations are made for the year commencing 1 April 
2010.  
 

18 The Scheme as Recommended 
 

 18.1 A copy of the Scheme as now recommended by the Panel is attached 
as an Appendix to this report. 
 

19 Amendment to the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for the Year Ending 31 
March 2009 
 

 19.1 The Panel was requested to consider making a recommendation to the 
Shadow Council to amend the Members’ Allowances Scheme for the 
year ending 31 March 2009 to enable the payment of an allowance to 
those Members nominated by the Shadow Council to serve as 
observer members of the Bedfordshire Police Authority or the 
Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority.  Whilst both the 
Police and Fire Authorities had approved schemes of Members’ 
Allowances, they would be unable to pay any allowances to observer 
members nominated by the successor authorities.  
 

 19.2 It was noted that the appointment of observer members to the Police 
Authority had been delayed as a result of the number of observer 
members that each of the successor authorities may appoint having 
been referred to the Home Secretary for determination.  It was 
understood that observer members would not have voting rights for the 
period ending 1 April 2009, when Central Bedfordshire would come into 
being. 
 

 19.3 The Panel recommended that the Scheme of Members’ Allowances for 
the Year Ending 31 March 2009 be amended to enable both a special 
responsibility allowance, and travelling and subsistence allowances to 
be paid to observer members appointed to either the Bedfordshire 
Police Authority or the Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire 
Authority. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6. 30 

 19.4 In considering the value of the special responsibility allowance, the 
Panel recommended that this be at the rate set for the basic allowance 
for existing members of Bedfordshire Police Authority and Bedfordshire 
and Luton Combined Fire Authority and paid pro rata according to the 
number of days for which the appointment would be valid, subject to no 
additional payment being made where an existing Member of either the 
Bedfordshire Police Authority or the Bedfordshire and Luton Combined 
Fire Authority is appointed by the Shadow Council as an observer 
member. 
 

 19.5 The Panel noted that the basic allowances paid by Bedfordshire Police 
Authority and Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority for the 
year ending 31 March 2009 were: 
 

  (a) Bedfordshire Police Authority  £8,487 
  (b) Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority £2,856 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.31 

Appendix C 
 

Creating Central Bedfordshire  

 

 
 
 

Draft Members’ Allowances 
 

 Scheme for the year commencing  
 

1 April 2009



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.32 

 
MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 

 
CONTENTS 

 
  Page No. 

 
1.  The Scheme  
2.  Definitions  
3.  Basic Allowance  
4.  Special Responsibility Allowances  
5.  Renunciation  
6.  Part-year Entitlements  
7.  Suspension/Repayment of Allowances  
8.  Claims and Payments  
9.  Payment of Allowances  
10.  Travelling and Subsistence  
11.  Dependants’ Carers’ Allowances  
12.  Co-opted Members’ Allowances  
13.  Annual Review  
 
Schedule 1 Special Responsibility Allowances  
Schedule 2  Approved Duties  
Schedule 3 Travelling & Subsistence  
Schedule 4 Dependants’ Carers’ Allowances  
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.33  

CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 
 

The Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council, in exercise of the powers conferred by 
The Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order 2008 and The Local Authorities 
(Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, hereby makes the following 
scheme: 
 
1. The Scheme 

 

 
This scheme may be cited as the Central Bedfordshire Council Members' 
Allowances Scheme, and shall have effect for the financial year commencing 
on 1 April 2009. 
 

2. Definitions 
 

 
In this scheme, 
 

 
2.1 "Councillor" means a member of the Central Bedfordshire Council who 

is a Councillor; 
 

 
2.2 “Co-opted Member” means a person appointed by Central 

Bedfordshire Council to serve as a member of a Committee or a 
Panel. 
 

3. Basic Allowance 
 

 3.1 The basic allowance payable to all Councillors shall be at the rates set 
out below: 
 

  (a) for the period from 1 April 2009 until 8 June 2009 the 
allowance shall be paid pro rata to an annual sum of  

 
£5,971 

  (b) for the period from 8 June 2009 until 31 March 2010 
the allowance shall be paid pro rata to an annual sum 
of  
 

 
£11,220 

4. Special Responsibility Allowances 
 

 4.1 A special responsibility allowance shall be paid to those Councillors 
who hold a position of special responsibility in relation to the authority 
as specified in Schedule 1 to this Scheme. 
 

 4.2 Subject to paragraph 5, 6, and 7 the amount of each such allowance 
shall be the amount specified against the special responsibility in 
Schedule 1. 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.34  

 4.3 Other than for the exceptions noted below, no Councillor may receive 
more than one special responsibility allowance: 
 

  (a) the Deputy Leader of the Council may be paid one additional 
special responsibility allowance, if appointed to any other position 
included within Schedule 1 to this Scheme, and  
 

  (b) if the same Councillor is appointed as the Chairman of both the 
Licensing Committee and the Regulation Committee, that 
Councillor may be paid the special responsibility allowances for 
both posts included within Schedule 1 to this Scheme. 
  

5. Renunciation 
 

 A Councillor may by notice in writing, given to the Monitoring Officer, elect to 
forego any part of his or her entitlement to an allowance under this Scheme. 
 

6. Part-year Entitlements 
 

 6.1 The provisions of this paragraph shall have effect to regulate the 
entitlements of a Councillor to basic, and special responsibility 
allowances where in the course of the year commencing 1 April 2009 
this scheme is amended or that Councillor becomes, or ceases to be, a 
Councillor, or accepts or relinquishes a special responsibility in respect 
of which a special responsibility allowance is payable. 
 

 6.2 If an amendment to this Scheme changes the amount to which a 
Councillor is entitled by way of a basic allowance or a special 
responsibility allowance, then in relation to each of the periods 
 

  6.2.1 beginning with the year and ending with the day before that on 
which the first amendment in that year takes effect, or 
 

  6.2.2 beginning with the day on which an amendment takes effect 
and ending with the day before that on which the next 
amendment takes effect, or (if none) with the year, 
 

  the entitlement to such an allowance shall be to the payment of such 
part of the amount of the allowance under the scheme as it has effect 
during the relevant period as bears to the whole the same proportion 
as the number of the days in the period bears to the number of days in 
the year. 
 

 6.3 Where the term of office of a Councillor begins or ends otherwise than 
at the beginning or end of a year, the entitlement of that Councillor to a 
basic allowance shall be to the payment to such part of the basic 
allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the number of 
days during which his term of office subsists bears to the number of 
days in that year. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.35  

 
 6.4 Where this scheme is amended as mentioned in sub-paragraph 6.2 

and the term of office of a Councillor does not subsist throughout the 
period mentioned in sub-paragraph 6.2.1, the entitlement of any such 
Councillor to a basic allowance shall be to the payments of such part of 
the basic allowance referable to each such period (ascertained in 
accordance with that sub-paragraph) as bears to the whole the same 
proportion as the number of days during which his term of office as a 
Councillor subsists bears to the number of days in that period. 
 

 6.5 Where a Councillor has during part of, but not throughout, a year such 
special responsibilities as entitle him or her to a special responsibility 
allowance, that Councillor's entitlements shall be to payment of such 
part of that allowance as bears to the whole the same proportion as the 
number of days during which he has such special responsibilities bears 
to the numbers of days in that year. 
 

 6.6 Where this Scheme is amended as mentioned in sub-paragraph 6.2 
and a Councillor has during part, but does not have throughout the 
whole, of any period mentioned in sub-paragraph 6.2.1 of that 
paragraph any such special responsibilities as entitle him or her to a 
special responsibility allowance, that Councillor’s entitlement shall be to 
payment of such part of the allowance referable to each such period 
(ascertained in accordance with that sub-paragraph) as bears to the 
whole the same proportion as the number of days in that period during 
which he or she has such special responsibilities bears to the number 
of days in that period. 
 

7 Suspension/Repayment of Allowances 
 

 7.1 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman of the 
Council is authorised:- 
 

  7.1.1 to withhold payment of allowances to any Councillor who is 
suspended or partly suspended in accordance with the 
provisions of Part III of the Local Government Act 2000; 
 

  7.1.2 to seek repayment of allowances paid to a Councillor in 
respect of any period during which the Councillor concerned 
is suspended, partly suspended, has ceased to be a 
Councillor, or is in any other way not entitled to receive the 
allowance paid to him or her. 
 

8. Claims and Payments 
 

 8.1 A claim for any travelling, subsistence or dependants’ carers’ 
allowances under this scheme shall be made in writing within two 
months of the date of the meeting in respect of which the entitlement to 
the allowance arises. 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.36  

 
 

 8.2 A claim for an allowance under paragraph 8.1 above shall include, or 
be accompanied by, a statement signed by the claimant that he or she 
has not made and will not make any other claim in respect of the 
matter to which his or her claim relates. 
 

9. Payment of Allowances 
 

 9.1 Payments shall be made 
 

  9.1.1 in respect of basic and special responsibility allowances, 
subject to sub-paragraph 9.2, in instalments of one-twelfth of 
the amount specified in this Scheme on the same day of each 
month as that on which salary is paid to staff. 
 

  9.1.2 in respect of travelling, subsistence and dependants’ carers’ 
allowances, on the same day of each month as that on which 
salary is paid to staff, in respect of claims received on or before 
the third working day of that month.  
 

 9.2 Where a payment of one-twelfth of the amount specified in this 
Scheme in respect of a basic allowance or a special responsibility 
allowance would result in the Councillor receiving more than the 
amount to which, by virtue of paragraph 6, he or she is entitled, the 
payment shall be restricted to such amount as will ensure that no more 
is paid than the amount to which he or she is entitled. 
 

10. Travelling and Subsistence 
 

 Details of, and entitlement to, travelling and subsistence payments in 
respect of approved duties are set out in Schedules 2 and 3. 
 

11. 
 

Dependants’ Carers’ Allowances 
 

 Details of, and entitlement to, dependants’ carers’ allowances are set out in 
Schedule 4. 
 

12. Co-opted Members’ Allowance 
 

 With the exception of the Chairman of the Standards Committee, for whom a 
special responsibility allowance is payable, each person appointed to a 
Committee or Sub-Committee of Central Bedfordshire Council, as a Co-
opted Member, shall be paid in respect of each meeting or training event 
attended each year an allowance, as shown below: 
 

 (a) where the meeting or training event is of up to 4 hours £75 
 

 (b) where the meeting or training event is for more than 4 hours £150 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.37  

 
 
 

13. Annual Review 
 

 This scheme will be reviewed by an independent remuneration panel in 
accordance with the requirements of the Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, prior to 1 April 2010. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.38 

SCHEDULE 1 
 
SPECIAL RESPONSIBILITY ALLOWANCES 
 
The following are specified as the special responsibilities in respect of which special 
responsibility allowances are payable, and the amounts of those allowances:- 
 
  £ 

 
 Leader of the Council £33,660 
 Deputy Leader of the Council £5,049 
 Portfolio Holders £20,196 
 Portfolio Holder Assistants £2,525 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Chairmen £10,940 
 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Vice-Chairmen £2,525 
 Development Management Committee Chairman £13,464 
 Development Management Committee Vice-Chairman £2,525 
 Audit Committee Chairman £10,940 
 Audit Committee Vice-Chairman £2,525 
 General Purposes Committee Chairman £5,049 
 Standards Committee Chairman £5,049 
 Licensing Committee Chairman £2,525 
 Regulation Committee Chairman £2,525 
 Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee Chairman  £13,464 
 Lead Members of Transitional Task Forces £3,655 
 Members of Transitional Task Forces £1,828 
 Minority Group Leaders (see Note 1) £2,525 
 
Note 1: The allowance will be payable to the Leader of any duly constituted minority 
group that has 7 or more members. In the event of no minority group having 7 or 
more members, and no other special responsibility allowance being paid to a 
member of a duly constituted minority group, the allowance shall be paid to the 
Leader of the largest minority group. 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.39 

SCHEDULE 2 
 
APPROVED DUTIES 
 
A. Attendance at meetings of the Forums below is an approved duty for the 

purpose of the payment of travelling and subsistence allowances: 
 

 Council. 
 Executive, Committees, Sub-Committees, Joint Committees and Panels. 
 Site meetings where duly authorised. 
 Task Forces and similar bodies. 
 In-house seminars or training. 
 Meetings (when representing the Council) with other Authorities, 

Organisations, etc. or specific visits arranged by the Executive, a Committee, 
Sub-Committee or Task Force in respect of its functions. 

 Meetings with the External Auditor concerning management matters. 
 

B. The following shall be approved duties for the purpose of paying travelling and 
subsistence allowances:- 
 

 (a) Meetings of Group Leaders. 
 

 (b) Meetings of Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen, Leader and Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holders. 
 

 (c) Chairman's Briefing meetings for Council, Executive, Committees, Sub-
Committees, Task Forces etc. for Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen, 
Portfolio Holders, other Members of the Executive, Lead or Deputy Lead 
Members (or their representatives). 
 

 (d) Individual or joint formal meetings between the Members holding the 
following offices; Chairmen, Vice-Chairmen, Leader, Deputy Leader, 
Portfolio Holders, Group Leaders, with the Chief Executive, Deputy 
Chief Executive, Directors, Heads of Staff, or their representatives to 
discuss official Council business. 
 

 (e) Attendance at any training course, seminar or conference approved by 
or on behalf of the Member Development Champions. 
 

 (f) Attendance at the Council Offices for newly elected Members for such 
matters as the signature of Declaration of Acceptance of Office and 
having photographs taken. 
 

 (g) Undertaking Civic visits as Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Shadow 
Council (or substituting for either office holder) when the official car is 
not used. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.40 

C Attendance at all outside bodies where the Member is attending as the 
Council’s duly appointed representative (whether appointed for a fixed term or 
authorised on an ad hoc basis), subject to no such allowances being claimed 
by the Member from the outside body concerned. 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.41  

SCHEDULE 3 
 
TRAVELLING AND SUBSISTENCE 
 
Travel by Councillor’s Own Car 
 
If the use of a councillor's own vehicle (i) results in substantial saving of his/her 
time, or (ii) is in the interests of the council, or (iii) is otherwise reasonable, a 
councillor may claim:- 
  per mile 
  

For a car or motorcycle irrespective of engine size
  

 
46.9p 

The above rate, which is fixed at the same level as the rate prescribed by the 
National Joint Council for local government staff, for a vehicle with an engine size of 
up to 1199cc, will be amended during the year ending 31 March 2010 in line with 
any change recommended by the National Joint Council for the payment of local 
government staff. 
 
If a councillor conveys other councillors, (to whom a travelling allowance would be 
payable, he/she may claim an additional 12p per mile for the first councillor and 6p 
per mile for the second and each subsequent councillor. 
 
A councillor may claim for the mileage necessarily and reasonably incurred in 
travelling to and returning from meetings, site visits, etc. from his/her normal place 
of residence. 
 
A councillor may claim the actual amount spent on parking fees, and expenses 
incurred for the purpose of overnight parking whilst away from home.  Receipts 
must be obtained and included with the claim. 
 
Travel by Public Transport or Rail 
 
The ordinary or any concessionary fare may be claimed.  Advantage should be 
taken of cheap or concessionary rates whenever reasonably practicable. 
 
 
Travel by Other Means – Taxi, Hire Car, Pedal Cycle etc. 
 
Claims for taxi journeys shall not exceed:- 
 
(a) in cases of urgency, or where no public transport is reasonably available, the 

amount of the actual fare and any reasonable gratuity paid; and 
 

(b) in any other case, the amount of the fare for travel by appropriate public 
transport. 
 

Where journeys are by pedal cycle the allowance will be at the rate of 20p per mile. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.42  

 
 
Subsistence Allowances (from 1 April 2009) 
 
Councillors may claim the amounts actually spent up to those shown below:- 
 
 Breakfast allowance (more than 4 hours away from 

normal place of residence before 11 am) 
 

£6.28 
 

 Lunch allowance (more than 4 hours away from 
normal place of residence, including the lunchtime 
between noon and 2.30 pm) 

 
 

£8.65 
 

 Tea allowance (more than 4 hours away from normal 
place of residence including the period 3 pm to 6 pm) 

 
£3.42 

 
 

Or 

 

 

 Evening meal allowance (more than 4 hours away 
from normal place of residence, ending after 7 pm) 

 
£10.72 

 
   
 
When main meals (i.e. a full breakfast, lunch or dinner) are taken on trains during 
a period for which there is an entitlement to day subsistence, the reasonable cost 
of the meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full, within the times specified 
below.  In such circumstances, reimbursement for the reasonable cost of a meal 
would replace the entitlement to the day subsistence allowance for the 
appropriate meal period. 
 
The limitations on reimbursement are: 
 
 (a) for breakfast, an absence of more than 4 hours, before 11 am. 

 
 (b) for lunch, an absence of more than 4 hours, including the period 

between 12 noon and 2 pm. 
 

 (c) for dinner, an absence of more than 4 hours, ending after 7 pm. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.43  

SCHEDULE 4 
 
DEPENDANTS’ CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 
 
A Councillor may claim a Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance in accordance with the 
provisions set out below:- 
 
1. The rate payable for Dependants’ Carers’ Allowance shall be decided upon 

the following criteria:- 
 

 (a) where care is required for children or is of a non-specialist nature for 
dependant relatives; at the rate set and from time to time amended by 
the Department for Business Enterprise and Regulatory Reform or its 
successor as the National Minimum Wage for workers aged 22 and 
over, being the sum of £5.73 per hour as from 1 October 2008; 
 

 (b) where specialist care services are required, and the Director of 
Corporate Resources is satisfied that such care is necessary, the hourly 
rate will be up to three times the rate for non-specialist care, £17.19 per 
hour as from 1 October 2008. 
 

2. Councillors shall be reimbursed up to a maximum of 12 hours per week, in 
respect of provision of care for any of the following who are at the time part of 
the claimant’s household living with him/her and would normally be looked 
after by him/her, whilst the claimant is undertaking an approved duty*. 

 (*NOTE: “Approved duty” is a duty defined in Schedule 2 of this Scheme of 
Members’ Allowances) 

 •  Children under the age of 14 
 

 •  Elderly persons (aged 60 or over) 
 

 •  People with disabilities 
 

 •  People with learning disabilities 
 

3. In addition to living as part of the claimant’s household, the dependant must 
be unable to be left unsupervised by the carer. 
 

4. Only one claim may be allowed per household for any given period of time. 

5. The rates referred to in 1 above shall be the total maximum payable per hour 
and not payable per dependant. 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 6 

 

6.44  

6. The claimant must produce a receipt for payments he/she has made and must 
sign a form to state that the costs were properly and necessarily incurred in 
the course of, or to permit, him/her undertaking his/her duties as a Councillor. 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 7 

 

7.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE CONSTITUTION AND INTERIM 
GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(To approve and adopt the Constitution of Central Bedfordshire 
Council together with the interim governance arrangements during 
the period 1 April to 7 June 2009.) 
 

REPORT OF Constitution and Governance Working Group 

Contact Officer: Kathrin John  Tel: 01462 611033 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY None arising directly from 
consideration of this report. 

FINANCIAL The implications relating to the new 
Scheme of Members’ Allowances 
were dealt with earlier on this agenda. 

LEGAL Local Government Act 2000 and 
supporting guidance, Local 
Government and Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007 and the Local 
Democracy, Economic Development 
and Construction Bill. 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES None 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY Account has been taken of the 
provisions of the Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 
2007 and the Local Democracy, 
Economic Development and 
Construction Bill. 

TRADES UNION None 

HUMAN RIGHTS No proposals are believed to conflict 
with the Human Rights Act. 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 
The recommendations are set out at Document 2 of the report of the 
Constitution and Governance Working Group (enclosed separately). 
 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 7 

 

7.2 

 
Background 
 
1. The recommendations made by the Constitution and Governance Working 

Group in relation to the adoption of the Constitution are set out in the report 
of the working group, which together with supporting documents including a 
full copy of the draft Constitution and the draft Ethical Handbook has been 
circulated separately to all Members of the Shadow Council with this 
agenda. 
 

2. Members are asked to note that the draft Constitution and Ethical Handbook 
have yet to be fully formatted in the corporate housestyle / branding.  The 
document will also be subject to further proofreading prior to publication. 
 

 

 
Background Papers: 
 

Local Government Act 2000 and supporting guidance, 
Local Government and Public Involvement Health Act 
2007 and the Local Democracy, Economic 
Development and Construction Bill 
 

Location of Papers: 
 

Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 

File Reference:  
 

N/A 

 
 











































































































































































































Agenda 
Item 
No. 9 

 

9.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT COUNCIL TAX 2009/10 
 
(To report the Budget Proposals of the Executive from its meeting 
of 17th February 2009 and present the Formal Council Tax 
Resolution) 
 

REPORT OF Director of Corporate Resources 

Contact Officer: Matt Bowmer, Head of Financial Services (Tel: 01462 611254) 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY Expenditure in a number of service 
areas will have a direct impact on 
sustainability.  

FINANCIAL Based on the revenue budget 
proposals, approving the formal 
Council Tax Resolution as set out in 
Appendix B would result in an average 
Band D Council Tax for Central 
Bedfordshire of £1,296.55.  

LEGAL All expenditure is in accordance with 
legislation and the Authority has a 
statutory duty to set a balanced 
budget 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES None 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY Expenditure in a number of service 
areas will have a direct impact on 
Community Development / Safety. 

TRADE UNIONS Trade Unions will be consulted 
through the appropriate channels in 
respect of the pay award element of 
the budget  

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

KEY ISSUE Yes 

BUDGET /POLICY FRAMEWORK Yes 

 
 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

Budget (Executive Report – 17 February 2009)  
Budget (Scrutiny Committee – 19 February 2009) 
Local Government Finance Settlement (Indicative 2009/10 Formula Grant) 
 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 9 

 

9.2 

 

 RECOMMENDATION: 
 

 TO APPROVE A FORMAL COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION. 

 
PURPOSE 
 
1. Members are required to approve a statutory Council Tax Resolution in the 

form shown in Appendix B. At this stage, the formal resolution is based on 
figures contained in my report on the revenue budget for 2009/10 (item CR3) 
to the Executive and any amendments made by the Executive will be the 
tabled at this meeting. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
2. The Executive at its special meeting on the 17 February 2009 considered a 

detailed report on the Revenue Budget for 2009/10 and Members are asked 
to refer to that report for a detailed explanation of the background to this 
report  
 

3. The Council Tax Resolution is in accordance with statutory requirements 
and is submitted at this stage on the basis of the budget proposals set out in 
that report. 
 

4. The precepts and Band D levels of precepting bodies have been received. 
These are detailed below: 

 
 
Town & Parish Councils/Meetings 
5. The Town & Parish Council/Meetings Precepts for 2009/10 are detailed in 

Appendix A and total £8,133,051. The increase in the average Band D 
Council Tax for Town and Parish Councils/Meetings is 3.8% and results in 
an average Band D Council Tax figure of £86.49 for 2009/10. 

 
Bedfordshire Police Authority 
6. Bedfordshire Police Authority met on 13 February 2009 and set its precept at 

£13,218,262. This results in a Band D Council Tax of £140.56 for 2009/10 
compared with £135.28 for 2008/09, being an increase of 3.90%.  
 

 
Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority 
7. Bedfordshire and Luton Combined Fire Authority met on 9 February 2009 

and set its precept at £7,676,485.  This results in a Band D Council Tax of 
£81.63 for 2009/10 compared with £78.84 for 2008/09, being an increase of 
3.54% 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 9 

 

9.3 

 
PROPOSALS 
 
8. Members are required to approve a resolution in the statutory format and the 

formal Council Tax Resolution at Appendix B is based on the budget 
proposals, which result in the total Band D Council Tax as shown in the 
“Valuation Bands” on that Appendix.  The various levels of Council Tax for 
each Band for each Town and Parish Council/Meeting are shown at 
Appendix C. 
 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

Estimate Working Papers 
Town & Parish Council/Meeting Precept Submissions 
Executive Report CR3 and Recommendations 
 

Location of Papers: 
 

Corporate Resources Directorate, Priory House, 
Chicksands 

File Reference:  N/A 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 

9.4 

TOWN & PARISH COUNCIL/MEETING PRECEPTS 

    2008/09 2009/10 2009/10 

Area Town/Parish Council Tax  Precept 
Council 
Tax  Tax  Precept 

Council 
Tax  C Tax 

    Base £ Band D (£) Base £ Band D (£) Increase 

M Ampthill 2,802 439,793 156.96 2,793 498,150 178.36 14% 

M Arlesey 1,950 165,211 84.72 1,961 173,150 88.30 4% 

M Aspley Guise 1,033 29,810 28.86 1,033 30,700 29.72 3% 

M Aspley Heath 364 8,460 23.24 364 7,000 19.23 -17% 

M Astwick 14 0 0.00 14 0 0.00 0% 

S Barton-le-Clay 1,985 117,945 59.40 1,999 121,590 60.82 2% 

M Battlesden 20 0 0.00 20 0 0.00 0% 

M Biggleswade 5,661 581,457 102.71 5,652 589,694 104.33 2% 

S Billington 170 6,000 35.34 172 6,000 34.90 -1% 

M Blunham 427 11,500 26.93 428 12,000 28.04 4% 

M Brogborough 105 6,963 66.31 107 7,325 68.46 3% 

S Caddington 1,514 71,354 47.12 1,529 71,354 46.67 -1% 

M Campton and Chicksands 618 16,500 26.70 549 17,000 30.97 16% 

S Chalgrave 218 5,520 25.38 218 5,812 26.70 5% 

S Chalton 224 10,450 46.71 229 10,800 47.18 1% 

M Clifton 1,144 34,000 29.72 1,148 34,000 29.62 0% 

M Clophill 741 22,650 30.57 741 22,650 30.57 0% 

M Cranfield 1,529 80,800 52.84 1,537 80,800 52.57 -1% 

S Dunstable 12,457 1,580,926 126.91 12,541 1,669,610 133.13 5% 

M Dunton 255 13,830 54.24 254 13,940 54.88 1% 

S Eaton Bray 1,178 46,500 39.49 1,187 48,400 40.77 3% 

M Edworth 30 0 0.00 30 0 0.00 0% 

S Eggington 126 5,000 39.83 126 5,400 42.99 8% 

M Eversholt 198 2,500 12.63 207 3,000 14.49 15% 

M Everton 221 10,500 47.51 215 10,500 48.84 3% 

M Eyeworth 47 0 0.00 45 0 0.00 0% 

M Flitton and Greenfield 616 19,750 32.06 617 20,500 33.23 4% 

M Flitwick 4,706 582,235 123.72 4,705 598,644 127.24 3% 

M Gravenhurst 253 7,400 29.25 256 10,000 39.06 34% 

M Harlington 893 80,000 89.59 891 80,000 89.79 0% 

M Haynes 535 20,000 37.38 532 20,000 37.59 1% 

S Heath and Reach 608 24,000 39.46 619 24,000 38.77 -2% 

M Henlow 1,476 100,686 68.22 1,470 103,050 70.10 3% 

S Hockcliffe 301 13,200 43.89 313 13,400 42.80 -2% 

M Houghton Conquest 550 28,000 50.91 555 28,000 50.45 -1% 

S Houghton Regis 5,053 620,000 122.71 5,049 637,500 126.26 3% 

M Hulcote and Salford 94 4,000 42.55 92 4,000 43.48 2% 

M Husborne Crawley 107 2,665 24.91 108 2,772 25.67 3% 

S Hyde 164 3,700 22.60 162 3,800 23.41 4% 

S Kensworth 636 19,600 30.80 633 20,188 31.91 4% 

M Langford 1,235 86,500 70.04 1,241 88,250 71.11 2% 

S Leighton-Linslade 13,282 1,456,571 109.66 13,423 1,515,111 112.88 3% 

M Lidlington  474 25,000 52.74 481 25,000 51.98 -1% 

M Marston Moretaine 1,580 79,884 50.56 1,573 80,370 51.09 1% 

M Maulden  1,295 45,000 34.75 1,287 40,000 31.08 -11% 



APPENDIX A 

 

9.5 

M Meppershall 718 28,500 39.69 721 31,000 43.00 8% 

M Millbrook 61 2,500 40.98 61 2,000 32.79 -20% 

M Milton Bryan 80 1,555 19.44 80 1,915 23.94 23% 

M Moggerhanger 258 11,440 44.34 256 11,600 45.31 2% 

M Northill 993 39,275 39.55 993 40,000 40.28 2% 

M Old Warden 121 3,000 24.79 124 3,000 24.19 -2% 

M Potsgrove 23 0 0.00 24 0 0.00 0% 

M Potton 1,889 105,000 55.58 1,882 105,000 55.79 0% 

M Pulloxhill 406 8,140 20.05 407 8,547 21.00 5% 

M Ridgmont 164 10,000 60.98 164 12,000 73.17 20% 

M Sandy 4,145 337,649 81.46 4,138 350,000 84.58 4% 

M Shefford 2,121 118,700 55.96 2,191 118,700 54.18 -3% 

M Shillington 791 25,400 32.11 785 30,000 38.22 19% 

M Silsoe 744 23,500 31.59 743 23,500 31.63 0% 

S Slip End 750 56,237 75.00 743 37,135 50.00 -33% 

M Southill 494 11,500 23.28 493 11,500 23.33 0% 

S Stanbridge 350 10,040 28.66 353 10,040 28.43 -1% 

M Steppingley 101 5,515 54.60 101 5,515 54.60 0% 

M Stondon 894 35,682 39.91 891 35,682 40.05 0% 

M Stotfold 3,217 234,520 72.90 3,416 295,048 86.37 18% 

S Streatley 714 8,094 11.34 717 9,057 12.63 11% 

S Studham 616 20,098 32.61 623 16,690 26.77 -18% 

S Sundon 190 12,600 66.43 186 12,600 67.92 2% 

M Sutton 136 4,700 34.56 134 4,700 35.07 1% 

M Tempsford 234 11,500 49.15 231 12,000 51.95 6% 

S Tilsworth 155 4,800 30.90 157 5,500 35.01 13% 

M Tingrith 77 1,550 20.13 76 1,600 21.05 5% 

S Toddington 1,822 99,042 54.37 1,845 103,201 55.94 3% 

S Totternhoe 534 14,398 26.96 536 13,395 24.98 -7% 

M Westoning 865 23,350 26.99 871 24,050 27.61 2% 

S Whipsnade 234 6,500 27.83 231 6,500 28.14 1% 

M Woburn 436 21,114 48.43 424 21,116 49.80 3% 

M 
Wrestlingworth and 
Cockayne Hatley 

347 16,000 46.11 338 17,000 50.30 9% 

  TOTAL / AVERAGE 93,568 7,797,759 83.34 94,040 8,133,051 86.49 3.8% 

  TOTAL FOR MBDC 50,288 3,585,184 71.29 50,450 3,765,968 74.65 4.7% 

  TOTAL FOR SBDC 43,280 4,212,575 97.33 43,590 4,367,083 100.19 2.9% 

 



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

9.6 

 

COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 2009/2010 
 
1. That the following amounts be calculated in accordance with Sections 32 and 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992: 
 

  AUTHORITY MID BEDS 
AREA 

SOUTH 
BEDS AREA 

a Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items 
set out in Section 32(2)(a to e) of the Act  
(Budget expenditure, transfers to reserves and town & parish 
precepts) 

 
332,265,566 

 

  

b Aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for the items 
set out in Section 32(3)(a to c) of the Act 
(Budget income and grants) 

 
152,589,000 

 

  

c The amount by which the aggregate at 1(a) above exceeds the 
aggregate at 1(b) above, calculated by the Council in accordance with 
Section 32(4) of the Act 
(Budget requirement for the year) 

 
 

179,676,566  
 

  

d Aggregate of the sums which the Council estimates for 2009/10 will be 
payable into its General Fund in respect of: 

   

i Formula Grant 49,411,615   

ii The amount that the Council estimates will be transferred to its 
General Fund from its Collection Fund in respect of the estimated 
surplus on its Collection Fund for 2008/09 (including prior year 
adjustments) 

 
 

204,000 

  

  49,615,615   

e The amount at 1(c)   (Budget requirement for the year)  179,676,566   

 Less the amount at 1(d)    49,411,615   



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

9.7 

 Net Budget Requirement for the Year 130,060,951  68,132,323  61,928,628  

 Divided by the Council Tax Base (calculated in accordance with 
Section 33(1) of the Act) as approved by Executive on 15th February 
2009 (94,040) equals the basic amount of its Council Tax for 2009/10. 

 
 

£1,383.04 

 
 

£1,350.49  

 
 

£1,420.71  

f Aggregate of all special items referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act   
(town & parish precepts) 

 
8,133,051 3,765,968  4,367,083  

g The amount at 1(e) above £1,382.66 £1,349.78  £1,420.71  

 Less the amount at 1(f) above divided by the Council Tax Base of 
94,040 

 
£86.49 £74.65  £100.19  

h Equals the basic amount of its Council Tax for 2009/10 for dwellings in 
those parts of the area to which no special item relates (calculated in 
accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act) 

 
£1,296.55  

 

 
£1,275.84 

 
£1,320.52 

 

i The amounts shown in the schedule to this Appendix in the column “Band D”, lines (b), being the amounts given by 
adding to that amount in 1(h) above, the amounts of special items relating to dwellings in those parts of the Council’s 
area shown in the schedule divided in each case by the tax base for the relevant area calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council tax for 2009/10 for dwellings in those parts 
of its area to which the special items relate. 

J The amounts shown in the schedule to this Appendix, lines (b), being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 
1(h) and 1(i) above by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings 
listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in 
valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as amounts to be taken into 
account for 2009/10, in respect of the categories of dwellings listed in the different valuation bands. 

 
2. That the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the aggregate 

amounts shown in the tables below as the amounts of Council Tax for 2009/10 for each part of its area and for each of the 
categories of dwellings. 



 

 

APPENDIX B 
 

9.8 

 
 

Valuation Bands 

 
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL – MID BEDS AREA 

A B C D E F G H 

£850.56 £992.32 £1,134.08 £1,275.84 £1,559.36 £1,842.88 £2,126.40 £2,551.68 

 
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL - SOUTH BEDS AREA 

A B C D E F G H 

£880.34 £1,027.08 £1,173.80 £1,320.52 £1,613.96 £1,907.42 £2,200.86 £2,641.04 

 
BEDFORDSHIRE POLICE AUTHORITY 

A B C D E F G H 

£93.71 £109.32 £124.94 £140.56 £171.80 £203.03 £234.27 £281.12 

 
BEDFORDSHIRE & LUTON COMBINED FIRE AUTHORITY 

A B C D E F G H 

£54.42 £63.49 £72.56 £81.63 £99.77 £117.91 £136.05 £163.26 

 

AGGREGATE OF COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENTS – MID BEDS AREA 
A B C D E F G H 

£998.69 £1,165.13 £1,331.58 £1,498.03 £1,830.93 £2,163.82 £2,496.72 £2,996.06 

 
AGGREGATE OF COUNCIL TAX REQUIREMENTS – SOUTH BEDS AREA 
A B C D E F G H 

£1,028.47 £1,199.89 £1,371.30 £1,542.71 £1,885.53 £2,228.36 £2,571.18 £3,085.42 

 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.9 

COUNCIL TAX SCHEDULE BY TOWN & PARISH AREAS 

2009/10 Area 
Band A  Band B Band C Band D Band E Band F Band G Band H 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

                        

Central Bedfordshire Council                    

  Former MBDC Area  M 850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

  Former SBDC Area  S 880.34 1,027.08 1,173.80 1,320.52 1,613.96 1,907.42 2,200.86 2,641.04 

                     

Bedfordshire Police Authority    93.71 109.32 124.94 140.56 171.80 203.03 234.27 281.12 

                     

Beds & Luton Fire Authority    54.42 63.49 72.56 81.63 99.77 117.91 136.05 163.26 

                       

  Town/Parish only (a)                   

  Town/Parish & Area (b)             

  Total including Police & Fire (c)                   

Ampthill (a) M 118.90 138.72 158.54 178.36 217.99 257.63 297.26 356.71 

   (b)   969.46 1,131.04 1,292.62 1,454.20 1,777.35 2,100.51 2,423.66 2,908.39 

    (c)   1,117.59 1,303.85 1,490.12 1,676.39 2,048.92 2,421.45 2,793.98 3,352.77 

Arlesey (a) M 58.86 68.68 78.49 88.30 107.92 127.54 147.16 176.59 

   (b)   909.42 1,061.00 1,212.57 1,364.14 1,667.28 1,970.42 2,273.56 2,728.27 

    (c)   1,057.55 1,233.81 1,410.07 1,586.33 1,938.85 2,291.36 2,643.88 3,172.65 

Aspley Guise (a) M 19.81 23.11 26.42 29.72 36.32 42.93 49.53 59.44 

   (b)   870.37 1,015.43 1,160.50 1,305.56 1,595.68 1,885.81 2,175.93 2,611.12 

    (c)   1,018.50 1,188.24 1,358.00 1,527.75 1,867.25 2,206.75 2,546.25 3,055.50 

Aspley Heath (a) M 12.82 14.96 17.09 19.23 23.50 27.78 32.05 38.46 

   (b)   863.38 1,007.28 1,151.17 1,295.07 1,582.86 1,870.66 2,158.45 2,590.14 

    (c)   1,011.51 1,180.09 1,348.67 1,517.26 1,854.43 2,191.60 2,528.77 3,034.52 

Astwick (a) M 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   (b)   850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

    (c)   998.69 1,165.13 1,331.58 1,498.03 1,830.93 2,163.82 2,496.72 2,996.06 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.10 

 

Barton-le-Clay (a) S 40.54 47.30 54.06 60.82 74.33 87.85 101.36 121.63 

   (b)   920.88 1,074.38 1,227.86 1,381.34 1,688.29 1,995.27 2,302.22 2,762.67 

    (c)   1,069.01 1,247.19 1,425.36 1,603.53 1,959.86 2,316.21 2,672.54 3,207.05 

Battlesden (a) M 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   (b)   850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

    (c)   998.69 1,165.13 1,331.58 1,498.03 1,830.93 2,163.82 2,496.72 2,996.06 

Biggleswade (a) M 69.56 81.15 92.74 104.33 127.52 150.70 173.89 208.67 

   (b)   920.12 1,073.47 1,226.82 1,380.17 1,686.88 1,993.58 2,300.29 2,760.35 

    (c)   1,068.25 1,246.28 1,424.32 1,602.36 1,958.45 2,314.52 2,670.61 3,204.73 

Billington (a) S 23.27 27.15 31.03 34.90 42.66 50.42 58.17 69.81 

   (b)   903.61 1,054.23 1,204.83 1,355.42 1,656.62 1,957.84 2,259.03 2,710.85 

    (c)   1,051.74 1,227.04 1,402.33 1,577.61 1,928.19 2,278.78 2,629.35 3,155.23 

Blunham (a) M 18.69 21.81 24.92 28.04 34.27 40.50 46.73 56.07 

   (b)   869.25 1,014.13 1,159.00 1,303.88 1,593.63 1,883.38 2,173.13 2,607.75 

    (c)   1,017.38 1,186.94 1,356.50 1,526.07 1,865.20 2,204.32 2,543.45 3,052.13 

Brogborough (a) M 45.64 53.25 60.85 68.46 83.67 98.88 114.10 136.92 

   (b)   896.20 1,045.57 1,194.93 1,344.30 1,643.03 1,941.76 2,240.50 2,688.60 

    (c)   1,044.33 1,218.38 1,392.43 1,566.49 1,914.60 2,262.70 2,610.82 3,132.98 

Caddington (a) S 31.12 36.30 41.49 46.67 57.05 67.42 77.79 93.35 

   (b)   911.46 1,063.38 1,215.29 1,367.19 1,671.01 1,974.84 2,278.65 2,734.39 

    (c)   1,059.59 1,236.19 1,412.79 1,589.38 1,942.58 2,295.78 2,648.97 3,178.77 

Campton and Chicksands (a) M 20.64 24.08 27.52 30.97 37.85 44.73 51.61 61.93 

   (b)   871.20 1,016.40 1,161.60 1,306.81 1,597.21 1,887.61 2,178.01 2,613.61 

    (c)   1,019.33 1,189.21 1,359.10 1,529.00 1,868.78 2,208.55 2,548.33 3,057.99 

Chalgrave (a) S 17.80 20.76 23.73 26.70 32.63 38.56 44.50 53.39 

   (b)   898.14 1,047.84 1,197.53 1,347.22 1,646.59 1,945.98 2,245.36 2,694.43 

    (c)   1,046.27 1,220.65 1,395.03 1,569.41 1,918.16 2,266.92 2,615.68 3,138.81 

Chalton (a) S 31.45 36.70 41.94 47.18 57.67 68.15 78.64 94.36 

   (b)   911.79 1,063.78 1,215.74 1,367.70 1,671.63 1,975.57 2,279.50 2,735.40 

    (c)   1,059.92 1,236.59 1,413.24 1,589.89 1,943.20 2,296.51 2,649.82 3,179.78 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.11 

 

Clifton (a) M 19.74 23.04 26.33 29.62 36.20 42.78 49.36 59.23 

   (b)   870.30 1,015.36 1,160.41 1,305.46 1,595.56 1,885.66 2,175.76 2,610.91 

    (c)   1,018.43 1,188.17 1,357.91 1,527.65 1,867.13 2,206.60 2,546.08 3,055.29 

Clophill (a) M 20.38 23.77 27.17 30.57 37.36 44.15 50.94 61.13 

   (b)   870.94 1,016.09 1,161.25 1,306.41 1,596.72 1,887.03 2,177.34 2,612.81 

    (c)   1,019.07 1,188.90 1,358.75 1,528.60 1,868.29 2,207.97 2,547.66 3,057.19 

Cranfield (a) M 35.05 40.89 46.73 52.57 64.25 75.93 87.62 105.14 

   (b)   885.61 1,033.21 1,180.81 1,328.41 1,623.61 1,918.81 2,214.02 2,656.82 

    (c)   1,033.74 1,206.02 1,378.31 1,550.60 1,895.18 2,239.75 2,584.34 3,101.20 

Dunstable (a) S 88.75 103.55 118.34 133.13 162.71 192.30 221.88 266.26 

   (b)   969.09 1,130.63 1,292.14 1,453.65 1,776.67 2,099.72 2,422.74 2,907.30 

    (c)   1,117.22 1,303.44 1,489.64 1,675.84 2,048.24 2,420.66 2,793.06 3,351.68 

Dunton (a) M 36.59 42.69 48.78 54.88 67.08 79.27 91.47 109.76 

   (b)   887.15 1,035.01 1,182.86 1,330.72 1,626.44 1,922.15 2,217.87 2,661.44 

    (c)   1,035.28 1,207.82 1,380.36 1,552.91 1,898.01 2,243.09 2,588.19 3,105.82 

Eaton Bray (a) S 27.18 31.71 36.24 40.77 49.83 58.89 67.95 81.54 

   (b)   907.52 1,058.79 1,210.04 1,361.29 1,663.79 1,966.31 2,268.81 2,722.58 

    (c)   1,055.65 1,231.60 1,407.54 1,583.48 1,935.36 2,287.25 2,639.13 3,166.96 

Edworth (a) M 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   (b)   850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

    (c)   998.69 1,165.13 1,331.58 1,498.03 1,830.93 2,163.82 2,496.72 2,996.06 

Eggington (a) S 28.66 33.44 38.22 42.99 52.55 62.10 71.66 85.99 

   (b) M 909.00 1,060.52 1,212.02 1,363.51 1,666.51 1,969.52 2,272.52 2,727.03 

    (c)   1,057.13 1,233.33 1,409.52 1,585.70 1,938.08 2,290.46 2,642.84 3,171.41 

Eversholt (a) M 9.66 11.27 12.88 14.49 17.71 20.93 24.15 28.99 

   (b)   860.22 1,003.59 1,146.96 1,290.33 1,577.07 1,863.81 2,150.55 2,580.67 

    (c)   1,008.35 1,176.40 1,344.46 1,512.52 1,848.64 2,184.75 2,520.87 3,025.05 

Everton (a) M 32.56 37.98 43.41 48.84 59.69 70.54 81.40 97.67 

   (b)   883.12 1,030.30 1,177.49 1,324.68 1,619.05 1,913.42 2,207.80 2,649.35 

    (c)   1,031.25 1,203.11 1,374.99 1,546.87 1,890.62 2,234.36 2,578.12 3,093.73 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.12 

 

Eyeworth (a) M 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   (b)   850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

    (c)   998.69 1,165.13 1,331.58 1,498.03 1,830.93 2,163.82 2,496.72 2,996.06 

Flitton and Greenfield (a) M 22.15 25.84 29.53 33.23 40.61 47.99 55.38 66.45 

   (b)   872.71 1,018.16 1,163.61 1,309.07 1,599.97 1,890.87 2,181.78 2,618.13 

    (c)   1,020.84 1,190.97 1,361.11 1,531.26 1,871.54 2,211.81 2,552.10 3,062.51 

Flitwick (a) M 84.82 98.96 113.10 127.24 155.51 183.78 212.06 254.47 

   (b)   935.38 1,091.28 1,247.18 1,403.08 1,714.87 2,026.66 2,338.46 2,806.15 

    (c)   1,083.51 1,264.09 1,444.68 1,625.27 1,986.44 2,347.60 2,708.78 3,250.53 

Gravenhurst (a) M 26.04 30.38 34.72 39.06 47.74 56.42 65.10 78.13 

   (b)   876.60 1,022.70 1,168.80 1,314.90 1,607.10 1,899.30 2,191.50 2,629.81 

    (c)   1,024.73 1,195.51 1,366.30 1,537.09 1,878.67 2,220.24 2,561.82 3,074.19 

Harlington (a) M 59.86 69.83 79.81 89.79 109.74 129.69 149.64 179.57 

   (b)   910.42 1,062.15 1,213.89 1,365.63 1,669.10 1,972.57 2,276.04 2,731.25 

    (c)   1,058.55 1,234.96 1,411.39 1,587.82 1,940.67 2,293.51 2,646.36 3,175.63 

Haynes (a) M 25.06 29.24 33.42 37.59 45.95 54.30 62.66 75.19 

   (b)   875.62 1,021.56 1,167.50 1,313.43 1,605.31 1,897.18 2,189.06 2,626.87 

    (c)   1,023.75 1,194.37 1,365.00 1,535.62 1,876.88 2,218.12 2,559.38 3,071.25 

Heath & Reach (a) S 25.84 30.15 34.46 38.77 47.38 56.00 64.61 77.53 

   (b)   906.18 1,057.23 1,208.26 1,359.29 1,661.34 1,963.42 2,265.47 2,718.57 

    (c)   1,054.31 1,230.04 1,405.76 1,581.48 1,932.91 2,284.36 2,635.79 3,162.95 

Henlow (a) M 46.73 54.52 62.31 70.10 85.68 101.26 116.84 140.20 

   (b)   897.29 1,046.84 1,196.39 1,345.94 1,645.04 1,944.14 2,243.24 2,691.88 

    (c)   1,045.42 1,219.65 1,393.89 1,568.13 1,916.61 2,265.08 2,613.56 3,136.26 

Hockliffe (a) S 28.53 33.29 38.04 42.80 52.31 61.82 71.33 85.60 

   (b)   908.87 1,060.37 1,211.84 1,363.32 1,666.27 1,969.24 2,272.19 2,726.64 

    (c)   1,057.00 1,233.18 1,409.34 1,585.51 1,937.84 2,290.18 2,642.51 3,171.02 

Houghton Conquest (a) M 33.63 39.24 44.84 50.45 61.66 72.87 84.08 100.90 

   (b)   884.19 1,031.56 1,178.92 1,326.29 1,621.02 1,915.75 2,210.48 2,652.58 

    (c)   1,032.32 1,204.37 1,376.42 1,548.48 1,892.59 2,236.69 2,580.80 3,096.96 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.13 

 

Houghton Regis (a) S 84.18 98.20 112.23 126.26 154.32 182.38 210.44 252.53 

   (b)   964.52 1,125.28 1,286.03 1,446.78 1,768.28 2,089.80 2,411.30 2,893.57 

    (c)   1,112.65 1,298.09 1,483.53 1,668.97 2,039.85 2,410.74 2,781.62 3,337.95 

Hulcote and Salford (a) M 28.99 33.82 38.65 43.48 53.14 62.80 72.46 86.96 

   (b)   879.55 1,026.14 1,172.73 1,319.32 1,612.50 1,905.68 2,198.86 2,638.64 

    (c)   1,027.68 1,198.95 1,370.23 1,541.51 1,884.07 2,226.62 2,569.18 3,083.02 

Husborne Crawley (a) M 17.11 19.96 22.81 25.67 31.37 37.07 42.78 51.33 

   (b)   867.67 1,012.28 1,156.89 1,301.51 1,590.73 1,879.95 2,169.18 2,603.01 

    (c)   1,015.80 1,185.09 1,354.39 1,523.70 1,862.30 2,200.89 2,539.50 3,047.39 

Hyde (a) S 15.61 18.21 20.81 23.41 28.62 33.82 39.02 46.83 

   (b)   895.95 1,045.29 1,194.61 1,343.93 1,642.58 1,941.24 2,239.88 2,687.87 

    (c)   1,044.08 1,218.10 1,392.11 1,566.12 1,914.15 2,262.18 2,610.20 3,132.25 

Kensworth (a) S 21.28 24.82 28.37 31.91 39.00 46.10 53.19 63.83 

   (b)   901.62 1,051.90 1,202.17 1,352.43 1,652.96 1,953.52 2,254.05 2,704.87 

    (c)   1,049.75 1,224.71 1,399.67 1,574.62 1,924.53 2,274.46 2,624.37 3,149.25 

Langford (a) M 47.41 55.31 63.21 71.11 86.91 102.72 118.52 142.22 

   (b)   897.97 1,047.63 1,197.29 1,346.95 1,646.27 1,945.60 2,244.92 2,693.90 

    (c)   1,046.10 1,220.44 1,394.79 1,569.14 1,917.84 2,266.54 2,615.24 3,138.28 

Leighton-Linslade (a) S 75.25 87.79 100.34 112.88 137.96 163.05 188.13 225.76 

   (b)   955.59 1,114.87 1,274.14 1,433.40 1,751.92 2,070.47 2,388.99 2,866.80 

    (c)   1,103.72 1,287.68 1,471.64 1,655.59 2,023.49 2,391.41 2,759.31 3,311.18 

Lidlington (a) M 34.65 40.43 46.20 51.98 63.53 75.08 86.63 103.95 

   (b)   885.21 1,032.75 1,180.28 1,327.82 1,622.89 1,917.96 2,213.03 2,655.63 

    (c)   1,033.34 1,205.56 1,377.78 1,550.01 1,894.46 2,238.90 2,583.35 3,100.01 

Marston Moretaine (a) M 34.06 39.74 45.42 51.09 62.45 73.80 85.16 102.19 

   (b)   884.62 1,032.06 1,179.50 1,326.93 1,621.81 1,916.68 2,211.56 2,653.87 

    (c)   1,032.75 1,204.87 1,377.00 1,549.12 1,893.38 2,237.62 2,581.88 3,098.25 

Maulden (a) M 20.72 24.17 27.63 31.08 37.99 44.89 51.80 62.16 

   (b)   871.28 1,016.49 1,161.71 1,306.92 1,597.35 1,887.77 2,178.20 2,613.84 

    (c)   1,019.41 1,189.30 1,359.21 1,529.11 1,868.92 2,208.71 2,548.52 3,058.22 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.14 

 

Meppershall (a) M 28.66 33.44 38.22 43.00 52.55 62.11 71.66 85.99 

   (b)   879.22 1,025.76 1,172.30 1,318.84 1,611.91 1,904.99 2,198.06 2,637.67 

    (c)   1,027.35 1,198.57 1,369.80 1,541.03 1,883.48 2,225.93 2,568.38 3,082.05 

Millbrook (a) M 21.86 25.50 29.14 32.79 40.07 47.36 54.64 65.57 

   (b)   872.42 1,017.82 1,163.22 1,308.63 1,599.43 1,890.24 2,181.04 2,617.25 

    (c)   1,020.55 1,190.63 1,360.72 1,530.82 1,871.00 2,211.18 2,551.36 3,061.63 

Milton Bryan (a) M 15.96 18.62 21.28 23.94 29.26 34.58 39.90 47.88 

   (b)   866.52 1,010.94 1,155.36 1,299.78 1,588.62 1,877.46 2,166.30 2,599.56 

    (c)   1,014.65 1,183.75 1,352.86 1,521.97 1,860.19 2,198.40 2,536.62 3,043.94 

Moggerhanger (a) M 30.21 35.24 40.28 45.31 55.38 65.45 75.52 90.63 

   (b)   880.77 1,027.56 1,174.36 1,321.15 1,614.74 1,908.33 2,201.92 2,642.31 

    (c)   1,028.90 1,200.37 1,371.86 1,543.34 1,886.31 2,229.27 2,572.24 3,086.69 

Northill (a) M 26.85 31.33 35.81 40.28 49.23 58.19 67.14 80.56 

   (b)   877.41 1,023.65 1,169.89 1,316.12 1,608.59 1,901.07 2,193.54 2,632.24 

    (c)   1,025.54 1,196.46 1,367.39 1,538.31 1,880.16 2,222.01 2,563.86 3,076.62 

Old Warden (a) M 16.13 18.82 21.51 24.19 29.57 34.95 40.32 48.39 

   (b)   866.69 1,011.14 1,155.59 1,300.03 1,588.93 1,877.83 2,166.72 2,600.07 

    (c)   1,014.82 1,183.95 1,353.09 1,522.22 1,860.50 2,198.77 2,537.04 3,044.45 

Potsgrove (a) M 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

   (b)   850.56 992.32 1,134.08 1,275.84 1,559.36 1,842.88 2,126.40 2,551.68 

    (c)   998.69 1,165.13 1,331.58 1,498.03 1,830.93 2,163.82 2,496.72 2,996.06 

Potton (a) M 37.19 43.39 49.59 55.79 68.19 80.59 92.99 111.58 

   (b)   887.75 1,035.71 1,183.67 1,331.63 1,627.55 1,923.47 2,219.39 2,663.26 

    (c)   1,035.88 1,208.52 1,381.17 1,553.82 1,899.12 2,244.41 2,589.71 3,107.64 

Pulloxhill (a) M 14.00 16.33 18.67 21.00 25.67 30.33 35.00 42.00 

   (b)   864.56 1,008.65 1,152.75 1,296.84 1,585.03 1,873.21 2,161.40 2,593.68 

    (c)   1,012.69 1,181.46 1,350.25 1,519.03 1,856.60 2,194.15 2,531.72 3,038.06 

Ridgmont (a) M 48.78 56.91 65.04 73.17 89.43 105.69 121.95 146.34 

   (b)   899.34 1,049.23 1,199.12 1,349.01 1,648.79 1,948.57 2,248.35 2,698.02 

    (c)   1,047.47 1,222.04 1,396.62 1,571.20 1,920.36 2,269.51 2,618.67 3,142.40 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.15 

 

Sandy (a) M 56.39 65.79 75.18 84.58 103.38 122.17 140.97 169.16 

   (b)   906.95 1,058.11 1,209.26 1,360.42 1,662.74 1,965.05 2,267.37 2,720.84 

    (c)   1,055.08 1,230.92 1,406.76 1,582.61 1,934.31 2,285.99 2,637.69 3,165.22 

Shefford (a) M 36.12 42.14 48.16 54.18 66.22 78.25 90.29 108.35 

   (b)   886.68 1,034.46 1,182.24 1,330.02 1,625.58 1,921.13 2,216.69 2,660.03 

    (c)   1,034.81 1,207.27 1,379.74 1,552.21 1,897.15 2,242.07 2,587.01 3,104.41 

Shillington (a) M 25.48 29.72 33.97 38.22 46.71 55.20 63.69 76.43 

   (b)   876.04 1,022.04 1,168.05 1,314.06 1,606.07 1,898.08 2,190.09 2,628.11 

    (c)   1,024.17 1,194.85 1,365.55 1,536.25 1,877.64 2,219.02 2,560.41 3,072.49 

Silsoe (a) M 21.09 24.60 28.11 31.63 38.66 45.69 52.71 63.26 

   (b)   871.65 1,016.92 1,162.19 1,307.47 1,598.02 1,888.57 2,179.11 2,614.94 

    (c)   1,019.78 1,189.73 1,359.69 1,529.66 1,869.59 2,209.51 2,549.43 3,059.32 

Slip End (a) S 33.33 38.89 44.44 50.00 61.11 72.22 83.33 100.00 

   (b)   913.67 1,065.97 1,218.24 1,370.52 1,675.07 1,979.64 2,284.19 2,741.04 

    (c)   1,061.80 1,238.78 1,415.74 1,592.71 1,946.64 2,300.58 2,654.51 3,185.42 

Southill (a) M 15.55 18.14 20.73 23.33 28.51 33.69 38.88 46.65 

   (b)   866.11 1,010.46 1,154.81 1,299.17 1,587.87 1,876.57 2,165.28 2,598.33 

    (c)   1,014.24 1,183.27 1,352.31 1,521.36 1,859.44 2,197.51 2,535.60 3,042.71 

Stanbridge (a) S 18.96 22.12 25.27 28.43 34.75 41.07 47.39 56.87 

   (b)   899.30 1,049.20 1,199.07 1,348.95 1,648.71 1,948.49 2,248.25 2,697.91 

    (c)   1,047.43 1,222.01 1,396.57 1,571.14 1,920.28 2,269.43 2,618.57 3,142.29 

Steppingley (a) M 36.40 42.47 48.54 54.60 66.74 78.87 91.01 109.21 

   (b)   886.96 1,034.79 1,182.62 1,330.44 1,626.10 1,921.75 2,217.41 2,660.89 

    (c)   1,035.09 1,207.60 1,380.12 1,552.63 1,897.67 2,242.69 2,587.73 3,105.27 

Stondon (a) M 26.70 31.15 35.60 40.05 48.95 57.85 66.75 80.09 

   (b)   877.26 1,023.47 1,169.68 1,315.89 1,608.31 1,900.73 2,193.15 2,631.77 

    (c)   1,025.39 1,196.28 1,367.18 1,538.08 1,879.88 2,221.67 2,563.47 3,076.15 

Stotfold (a) M 57.58 67.18 76.78 86.37 105.57 124.76 143.95 172.74 

   (b)   908.14 1,059.50 1,210.86 1,362.21 1,664.93 1,967.64 2,270.35 2,724.42 

    (c)   1,056.27 1,232.31 1,408.36 1,584.40 1,936.50 2,288.58 2,640.67 3,168.80 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.16 

 

Streatley (a) S 8.42 9.83 11.23 12.63 15.44 18.25 21.06 25.27 

   (b)   888.76 1,036.91 1,185.03 1,333.15 1,629.40 1,925.67 2,221.92 2,666.31 

    (c)   1,036.89 1,209.72 1,382.53 1,555.34 1,900.97 2,246.61 2,592.24 3,110.69 

Studham (a) S 17.85 20.82 23.80 26.77 32.72 38.67 44.62 53.55 

   (b)   898.19 1,047.90 1,197.60 1,347.29 1,646.68 1,946.09 2,245.48 2,694.59 

    (c)   1,046.32 1,220.71 1,395.10 1,569.48 1,918.25 2,267.03 2,615.80 3,138.97 

Sundon (a) S 45.28 52.83 60.38 67.92 83.02 98.11 113.21 135.85 

   (b)   925.62 1,079.91 1,234.18 1,388.44 1,696.98 2,005.53 2,314.07 2,776.89 

    (c)   1,073.75 1,252.72 1,431.68 1,610.63 1,968.55 2,326.47 2,684.39 3,221.27 

Sutton (a) M 23.38 27.28 31.18 35.07 42.87 50.66 58.46 70.15 

   (b)   873.94 1,019.60 1,165.26 1,310.91 1,602.23 1,893.54 2,184.86 2,621.83 

    (c)   1,022.07 1,192.41 1,362.76 1,533.10 1,873.80 2,214.48 2,555.18 3,066.21 

Tempsford (a) M 34.63 40.40 46.18 51.95 63.49 75.04 86.58 103.90 

   (b)   885.19 1,032.72 1,180.26 1,327.79 1,622.85 1,917.92 2,212.98 2,655.58 

    (c)   1,033.32 1,205.53 1,377.76 1,549.98 1,894.42 2,238.86 2,583.30 3,099.96 

Tilsworth (a) S 23.34 27.23 31.12 35.01 42.79 50.57 58.35 70.02 

   (b)   903.68 1,054.31 1,204.92 1,355.53 1,656.75 1,957.99 2,259.21 2,711.06 

    (c)   1,051.81 1,227.12 1,402.42 1,577.72 1,928.32 2,278.93 2,629.53 3,155.44 

Tingrith (a) M 14.04 16.37 18.71 21.05 25.73 30.41 35.09 42.11 

   (b)   864.60 1,008.69 1,152.79 1,296.89 1,585.09 1,873.29 2,161.49 2,593.79 

    (c)   1,012.73 1,181.50 1,350.29 1,519.08 1,856.66 2,194.23 2,531.81 3,038.17 

Toddington (a) S 37.30 43.51 49.73 55.94 68.38 80.81 93.24 111.89 

   (b)   917.64 1,070.59 1,223.53 1,376.46 1,682.34 1,988.23 2,294.10 2,752.93 

    (c)   1,065.77 1,243.40 1,421.03 1,598.65 1,953.91 2,309.17 2,664.42 3,197.31 

Tottenhoe (a) S 16.65 19.43 22.21 24.98 30.53 36.08 41.64 49.96 

   (b)   896.99 1,046.51 1,196.01 1,345.50 1,644.49 1,943.50 2,242.50 2,691.00 

    (c)   1,045.12 1,219.32 1,393.51 1,567.69 1,916.06 2,264.44 2,612.82 3,135.38 

Westoning (a) M 18.41 21.48 24.54 27.61 33.75 39.88 46.02 55.22 

   (b)   868.97 1,013.80 1,158.62 1,303.45 1,593.11 1,882.76 2,172.42 2,606.90 

    (c)   1,017.10 1,186.61 1,356.12 1,525.64 1,864.68 2,203.70 2,542.74 3,051.28 



 

APPENDIX C 

 

9.17 

 

Whipsnade (a) S 18.76 21.89 25.01 28.14 34.39 40.64 46.90 56.28 

   (b)   899.10 1,048.97 1,198.81 1,348.66 1,648.35 1,948.06 2,247.76 2,697.32 

    (c)   1,047.23 1,221.78 1,396.31 1,570.85 1,919.92 2,269.00 2,618.08 3,141.70 

Woburn (a) M 33.20 38.73 44.27 49.80 60.87 71.94 83.00 99.60 

   (b)   883.76 1,031.05 1,178.35 1,325.64 1,620.23 1,914.82 2,209.40 2,651.28 

    (c)   1,031.89 1,203.86 1,375.85 1,547.83 1,891.80 2,235.76 2,579.72 3,095.66 

Wrestlingworth and (a) M 33.53 39.12 44.71 50.30 61.47 72.65 83.83 100.59 

Cockayne Hatley (b)   884.09 1,031.44 1,178.79 1,326.14 1,620.83 1,915.53 2,210.23 2,652.27 

    (c)   1,032.22 1,204.25 1,376.29 1,548.33 1,892.40 2,236.47 2,580.55 3,096.65 

 



T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS, CHAIRMEN AND STATUTORY 
CO-OPTEES TO COMMITTEES FROM APRIL TO JUNE 2009 
 
(To receive and consider the report of the Monitoring Officer on 
recommendations of the Group Leaders in relation to the 
appointment of Members and substitutes to Committees and other 
forums and the appointment of the Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen 
of certain Committees of the Council between April and June 
2009.) 

REPORT OF Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Kathrin John  Tel: 01462 611033 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY None 

FINANCIAL None 

LEGAL Section 15 of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES None 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADES UNION Representatives of the Trades Unions 
have been consulted in respect of the 
joint committees referred to in 
paragraph 14 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S):  
 
1.   That the size of the Committees and Forums and the allocation of seats 

to Groups in accordance with the political proportionality rules, where 
applicable, as set out in Appendix A, be approved. 
 

2.   That the appointment of Members and substitutes to Committees and 
other Forums, as set out in Appendix B, be approved. 
 

3. That the appointment of Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of Committees 
for the period April to June 2009, as set out in Appendix C, be approved. 
 

4. That the following persons be appointed to the Scrutiny Committee as 
co-opted members with voting rights on education matters: 
 

 (a) Mr Ben Sear, parent governor representative;  



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.2 

 (b) Mrs Frances Image, Roman Catholic Diocesan representative; and 
 

 (c) Mr Jon Reynolds, Church of England Diocesan representative. 
 

5. That the Monitoring Officer be authorised to appoint up to two 
additional parent governor representatives who have been nominated 
and if necessary duly elected through the statutory process. 
 

 
Appointments to Committees 
 
1. At the inaugural meeting of the Shadow Council, held on 10 April 2008, the 

Council agreed the appointment of Members to serve on the following 
Committees:- 
 

 •  Shadow Scrutiny Committee 

 •  General Purposes Committee 

 •  Appeals Committee 
 

2. A Shadow Executive of 12 Members was also appointed  in accordance with 
Article 16 of the Bedfordshire (Structural Changes) Order 2008, with 4 
Members being nominated from each of Bedfordshire County, Mid and 
South Bedfordshire District Councils.  The Leader and Deputy Leader of the 
Shadow Council were designated under Article 16 (4) of the Order. 
 

3. The recommendations of the Constitution and Governance Working Party in 
respect of the governance arrangements during the interim period 1 April to 
the June elections are set out elsewhere on this agenda. 
 

4. Members will note from the Working Party’s report that DCLG has confirmed 
that it is its policy intention that the  current Shadow Executive arrangements 
should continue until the new 66-member authority takes office  following the 
elections in June.  An amendment order is to be made imminently 
confirming that the Shadow Executive arrangements shall continue until 
after the elections.  There is therefore no need to re-appoint the Shadow 
Executive at this meeting. 
 

5. However, given that the Council will be exercising full local authority powers 
from 1 April 2009, in addition to the Committees listed in paragraph 1 above, 
it is now necessary to appoint members to serve upon the following 
additional Committees, for the period between 1 April to  7 June 2009:-  
 

 •  Development Management Committee 

•  Licensing Committee 

•  Regulation Committee 

•  Audit Committee 

 •  Social Care, Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.3 

6. It is reported elsewhere on this agenda that a Member for the Plantation 
Electoral Division of the County Council has ceased to be a Member of that 
Council and therefore also of the Shadow Council. 
 

7. The  revised political balance of the Council (with %s in brackets) is  now as 
follows:- 
 

 Conservative Independent Labour Liberal 
Democrat 

 

89 (72.36%) 4 (3.25%) 5 (4.07%) 25 (20.33%)  
 

8. A meeting has now been held with Group Leaders to consider nominations 
to the various Committees and other Forums. 
 

9. The following documents are now attached:- 
 

 Appendix A Size of the Committees and other Forums and allocation of 
seats to Groups in accordance with the proportionality rules 
(where applicable) 
 

Appendix B Nominations of the Groups for places on Committees and 
other Forums 
 

Appendix C Nominations for Chairmenships/Vice-Chairmenships of 
Committees 
 

10. In the event of more than one nomination arising in respect of Chairmanship 
of a Committee, each nomination in respect of that office will need to be put 
to the vote. 
 

11. The Chairmanship/Vice-Chairmanships of the various Joint Committees and 
other remaining Forums will be dealt with at the first meeting of each body. 
 

12. The following bodies are not subject to political proportionality:- 
 

 (a) Standards Committee 
 

  It is proposed that a Standards Committee of 15 Members be 
established comprising 5 elected Councillors, 5 Independent persons 
and 5 Town/Parish Council persons. 
 

 (b) Licensing Sub Committee 
 

 It is proposed that a sub committee of the Licensing Committee be 
established, comprising 3 members of the Licensing Committee, with 
any member appointed to act as a substitute.   
 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.4 

 (c) Town Centre Joint Management Committees 
 

 The Group Leaders have already nominated Councillors to serve upon 
these Committees as indicated in Appendix B. 
 

(d) Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee 
 

 (i) Section 29 Committee  
 

  This Committee has 6 Central Bedfordshire Councillors, which 
must include at least 3 Executive Councillors plus no more than 
two non-Executive Councillors, which would normally include the 
Chairman of the Development Management Committee. 
 

 (ii) Section 101 Committee 
 

  This Committee would have 3 of the Executive Councillors 
appointed to the Section 29 Committee. 
 

(e) Constitution Advisory Group 
 

 This Group currently comprises 4 members (3 Conservative and 1 
Liberal Democrat). 
 

 (f) Member Development Champions 
 

  The current membership is as follows:- 
 

  •  Group Leaders 

•  Deputy Leader of the Council 

•  Corporate Resources Portfolio Holder 

•  Cllr R Stay 

  
13. A report is to be submitted to the meeting of the Shadow Executive to be 

held on 17 March 2009 regarding the establishment of the Corporate 
Parenting Panel and appointments to the Panel and to the Fostering, 
Permanence and Adoption Panels. 

  
14. It is not anticipated that it will be necessary for the Employee Partnership 

Committee and the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee for 
Primary and Secondary Education to meet during the interim period April to 
June.  The Human Resources Lead has confirmed that the representatives 
of the Trades Unions are content with this proposal. 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.5 

15. The Group Leaders have met to consider appointments to outside bodies 
and these appointments are due to be approved by the Interim Chief 
Executive, following consultation with the Group Leaders, under her 
delegated powers.  
  

 Scrutiny Committee – Statutory Education Co-optees 
 

16. The Local Government Act 2000 and regulations made under it require 
certain representatives to be co-opted onto any overview and scrutiny 
committee whose functions relate wholly or partly to any education functions 
which are the responsibility of the authority’s executive. The co-opted 
members have a vote on education matters only. 
 

17. Under the full constitutional structure now recommended to Shadow 
Council, that committee will be the Children, Families and Learning 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. Since, however, that committee is not 
intended to be established until after the election in June 2009, the relevant 
committee meanwhile will be the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 The statutory co-optees are: 
 

 (a) between two and five parent governor representatives who must be 
appointed following an election among parent governors of schools 
maintained by the local education authority; and under the draft 
constitution, Shadow Council should appoint up to three parent 
governors; 
 

 (b) two church representatives, to be nominated respectively by the 
Church of England Diocesan Board and the Roman Catholic Diocesan 
Bishop for the area. 
 

18. Nominations for three parent governors representing lower, middle and 
upper schools were sought from among the parent governors of all 
maintained schools in the Central Bedfordshire area for a four year term 
beginning 1 April 2009. One middle school nomination has been received. 
Consideration is being given to how a further two nominations might be 
invited. 
 

19. The required nominations have been received from the Church of England 
and Roman Catholic Dioceses.  
 

 

Background Papers: 
 

None 

Location of Papers: 
 

N/A 

File Reference:  
 

N/A 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.6 

 
APPENDIX “A” 

 
POLITICAL APPORTIONMENTS (APRIL TO JUNE 2009) 
 
1. Standing Committees 

(Substitute numbers shown in brackets) 
 

 Body Total 
Seats 

C Ind Lab LD 

 Scrutiny 1 12 9(5) 0 1(1) 2(1) 

 General 
Purposes 

9 6(3) 1(1) 0 2(1) 

 Development 
Management  

18 13(7) 0 1 4(2) 

 Licensing 2 12 9(5) 1(1) 0 2(1) 

 Regulation 2 12 9(5) 1(1) 0 2(1) 

 Audit 3 7 5(3) 0 0 2(1) 

 Appeals 4 3(2) 0 0 1(1) 

 Social Care 
Health and 
Housing 
Overview & 
Scrutiny 1 

 

9 6 (3) 0 1(1) 2 (1) 

 Total No of 
seats 
 

83 60 3 3 17 

 Percentage of 
seats allocated 
 

(100%) 72.29 3.61 3.61 20.48 

   72.36%  3.25% 4.07% 20.33% 

 
Notes: 
 

 

1. No member of the Executive shall serve on the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees.  
 

2. The same members shall be appointed to serve on both the Regulation 
and Licensing Committees. 
 

3. No member of the Shadow Executive may sit on the Audit Committee and 
no more than one Member of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall 
sit on the Audit Committee.  The Chairman of the Committee shall not be a 
member of the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

  
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.7 

 
Appendix “B” 

 
Meeting of the Council 

 
26 February 2009  

 
Nominations for Membership of Committees etc 

For period 1 April to 7 June 2009 
 

 
Scrutiny Committee 

(12 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr P N Aldis 
 Cllr R A Baker 
 Cllr R G Baker BEM 
 Cllr A R Bastable 
 Cllr L Birt 
 Cllr A Fahn 
 Cllr R Goodwin 
 Cllr D Hogan 
 Cllr J Kane 
 Cllr H J Lockey 
 Cllr Mrs P Staples 
 TBA – Lib Dem Group 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: TBA, TBA, TBA, TBA, 

TBA 
Liberal Democrat: TBA 
Labour: Cllr M Hearty 

 
Regulation Committee 

(12 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr I Dalgarno 
 Cllr Mrs J R Davison 
 Cllr Mrs S Gilchrist 
 Cllr Ms A M W Graham 
 Cllr Mrs J G Lawrence 
 Cllr J H Lewis 
 Cllr H J Lockey 
 Cllr K Lynch 
 Cllr A A J Rogers 
 Cllr B J Spurr 
 Cllr Mrs C Turner 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.8 

  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: Cllr T Green, Cllr R V 

King, TBA, TBA, TBA 
Liberal Democrat: Cllr A R Baines 
Independent: Cllr J A Gurney 

   
Licensing Committee 

(12 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr I Dalgarno 
 Cllr Mrs J R Davison 
 Cllr Mrs S Gilchrist 
 Cllr Ms A M W Graham 
 Cllr Mrs J G Lawrence 
 Cllr J H Lewis 
 Cllr H J Lockey 
 Cllr K Lynch 
 Cllr A A J Rogers 
 Cllr B J Spurr 
 Cllr Mrs C Turner 
Substitutes:  
Conservative: Cllr T Green, Cllr R V 

King, TBA, TBA, TBA 
Liberal Democrat: Cllr A R Baines 
Independent: Cllr J A Gurney 

 
Licensing Sub Committee 

(3 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr Mrs J R Davison 
 Cllr Ms A M W Graham 
  
Substitutes: Any member of the 

Licensing Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.9 

 
General Purposes Committee 

(9 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr Mrs J R Davison 
 Cllr Mrs S Goodchild 
 Cllr Ms A M W Graham 
 Cllr T Green 
 Cllr J A Gurney 
 Cllr R W Johnstone 
 Cllr D J Lawrence 
 Cllr Mrs J G Lawrence 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: TBA, TBA, TBA 
Liberal Democrat: Cllr P N Aldis 
Independent: Cllr M A Smith 

 
Development Management Committee 

(18 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr A R Bastable 
 Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr Mrs C F Chapman MBE 
 Cllr M Freeman 
 Cllr D J Gale 
 Cllr Mrs R B Gammons 
 Cllr B J Golby 
 Cllr R W Johnstone 
 Cllr J Murray 
 Cllr T Nicols 
 Cllr A Northwood 
 Cllr A A J Rogers 
 Cllr A Shadbolt 
 Cllr J Street 
 Cllr G Summerfield 
 Cllr Mrs C Turner 
 Cllr J N Young 
 Cllr B Wells 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: Cllr I Dalgarno, Cllr H J Lockey, Cllr 

J Kane, Cllr N Warren, TBA, TBA, 
TBA 

Liberal Democrat: Cllr S A Mitchell, Cllr Mrs E Morgan 
Labour: Cllr M Hearty 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.10 

 
Audit Committee 
(7 Members) 

 
Members: Cllr A R Baines 
 Cllr R A Baker 
 Cllr Mrs A Barker 
 Cllr Mrs A Guess 
 Cllr Mrs K D Keen 
 Cllr D J Lawrence 
 Cllr J Machin 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: Cllr W Forde, TBA, TBA 
Liberal Democrat: Cllr M Butler 

 
Appeals Committee 

(4 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr Mrs S Goodchild 
 Cllr P Penman 
 Cllr R Stay 
 Cllr Mrs P E Turner MBE 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: TBA, TBA 
Liberal Democrat: Cllr T Swain 

 
Social Care, Health and Housing  
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

(9 Members) 
 

Members: Cllr R A Baker 
 Cllr M J Gibson 
 Cllr Mrs D B Gurney 
 Cllr M Hearty 
 Cllr S F Male 
 Cllr Miss A Sparrow 
 TBA – Cons Group 
 TBA – Lib Dem Group 
 TBA – Lib Dem Group 
  
Substitutes:  
Conservative: Cllr A B Carter, TBA, 

TBA 
Liberal Democrat: TBA 
Labour: Cllr D Ross 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.11 

Standards Committee 
(5 Members) 

 
Members: Cllr Mrs R Bird 
 Cllrs Mrs J Fairbairn 
 Cllr J H Lewis 
 Cllr P Rawcliffe 
 Cllr A A J Rogers 
  

 
Houghton Regis Town Centre Management Committee 

(4 CBC Members) 
 

Members: Cllr Mrs R Bird 
 Cllr N B Costin 
 Cllr Mrs S Goodchild 
 Cllr D Hogan 

 
Dunstable Town Centre Management Committee 

(5 CBC Members) 
 

Members: Cllr M Hearty 
 Cllr P Hollick 
 Cllr Miss A Sparrow 
 Cllr J Kane 
 Cllr J N Young 

   
Leighton Linslade Town Centre Management Committee 

(5 CBC Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Bowater 
 Cllr A Brandham 
 Cllr Mrs J M Freeman 
 Cllr R W Johnstone 
 Cllr P Rawcliffe 

 
Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee 

Section 29 Committee 
(6 CBC Members) 

 
Members: TBA )  Con Group 
 TBA ) 
 TBA ) 
 TBA ) 
 TBA ) 
 Cllr T Swain 
  
Substitutes: 1 per member - TBA 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.12 

 
Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee 

Section 101 Committee 
(3 CBC Executive Members) 

 
Members: TBA 
 TBA 
 TBA 

 
Constitution Advisory Group 

(4  Members) 
 

Members: Cllr D Jones 
 Cllr M Jones 
 Cllr S F Male 
 Cllr P Record 
 Cllr D J Lawrence (Sub) 
  

      
Member Development Champions 

(7  Members) 
 

Members: Cllr P A Blaine 
 Cllr J A Gurney 
 Cllr M Jones 
 Cllr P Penman 
 Cllr D Ross 
 Cllr R Stay 
 Cllr Mrs P E Turner MBE 

 



Agenda 
Item 
No. 10 

 

10.13 

Appendix “C” 
Meeting of the Council 

 
26 February 2009 

 
Nominations for Chairmenship/Vice-Chairmenship 
Of Standing Committees 1 April – 7 June 2009. 

 
Scrutiny Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr Mrs P Staples 
Vice-Chairman Cllr A R Bastable 
 
General Purposes Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr Mrs J G Lawrence 
Vice-Chairman Cllr T Green 
 
Development Management Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr A Shadbolt 
Vice-Chairman Cllr Mrs C F Chapman MBE 
 
Licensing Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr B J Spurr 
Vice-Chairman Cllr J H Lewis 
 
Regulation Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr B J Spurr 
Vice-Chairman Cllr J H Lewis 
 
Audit Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr D J Lawrence 
Vice-Chairman Cllr J Machin 
 
 Social Care, Health and Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
 
Chairman Cllr S F Male 
Vice-Chairman Cllr M J Gibson 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda 
Item  
No. 11 

 

11.1 

SHADOW COUNCIL 

26 FEBRUARY 2009 
 

SUBJECT CALENDAR OF MEETINGS APRIL 2009 – MAY 2010 
 

REPORT OF Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Kathrin John (Tel: 01462 611033) 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY None 

FINANCIAL None 

LEGAL None 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES There is a potential for equality 
issues to arise in connection 
with timing of meetings 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADE UNIONS None 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That Shadow Council approves the calendar of council and committee 
meetings for the period April 2009 – May 2010 as set out in the 
Appendix to this report. 
 

 
Background 
 
1. Preparing a calendar of meetings for the Municipal Year enables 

effective planning of Council business and preparation of the Forward 
Plan. In addition the Constitution specifies that citizens have the right 
to attend meetings of the Council, the Executive and its committees 
and citizens therefore need to be aware in advance of meeting dates. 
 

2. Set out in the Appendix is a programme of meetings for the period 1 
April 2009 – 31 May 2010 – a period of 14 months to aid programming 
of meetings just beyond the Annual Council meeting in 2010.  
 

3. The calendar has been prepared on the following basis:- 
 

 • Interim governance structure to operate between 1 April – June 
elections 

• Council meetings to commence at 6.30pm 



Agenda 
Item  
No. 11 

 

11.2 

• Development Management Committee to commence at 10am 
to consider strategic planning / minerals matters and 2.00pm to 
consider planning applications (the chairman being authorised 
to vary the start time according to business). 

• In the main all other meetings to commence at 9.30am (the 
Luton & South Beds Joint Committee (L&SBJC) has yet to 
confirm its start time) 

• The venue of Council, Executive and Development 
Management Committee meetings to alternate between 
Chicksands and Dunstable 

• The venue of L&SBJC meetings to alternate between 
Dunstable and Luton 

• Frequency of Development Management Committees to be 
twice monthly – once a month at each venue 

• Overview and Scrutiny Committees to meet on a monthly 
basis, i.e. at the same frequency as Executive meetings 
(although every other meeting to be allocated as a reserve 
meeting which can be cancelled, with the consent of the 
chairman in the event of there being no business). These 
Committees will be held initially at Chicksands and then at 
venues to be determined by each Committee 

• All other meetings to be held at Chicksands unless otherwise 
agreed by the committee or body concerned 

• A provisional date on 16 July 2009 for a Special Council 
meeting to confirm the appointment of Chief Executive 
 

4. It should be noted that the calendar only lists those meetings which 
can or need to be programmed (for constitutional, financial or other 
reasons). Meetings of other Council bodies such as Schools Forums, 
Licensing Sub-Committees, Appointments Panel etc. will be arranged 
as and when required. 
 

5. This is the first calendar for the new Council and will result in 
significant changes for many members, particularly in relation to start 
times. Frequency of meetings may require adjustment in some cases 
in the light of experience as the year progresses. Additionally the 
election of the new Council in June will reduce the number of 
members to 66. These factors could result in the need to review the 
calendar at some point in the municipal year. 

 
 

 
Background Papers: 
 

None 

Location of Papers: 
 

N/A 

File Reference:  N/A 



Agenda 
Item  
No. 11 

 

11.3 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

APR 1 2 3

2009 6 AUDIT 7 8 DMC (C) 9 10 HOLIDAY

13 HOLIDAY 14 EXECUTIVE (C) 15 16 17

20 21 22 LSP (D) 23 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 24

27 28 29 DMC (D) 30

MAY 1 STANDARDS

2009 4 HOLIDAY 5 SCRUTINY (R) 6 LIC'NG/REG 7 8

11 12 EXECUTIVE (D) 13 DMC (C) 14 15

18 19 20 21 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 22

25 HOLIDAY 26 27 DMC (D) 28 29

JUN 1 2 3 4 ELECTION 5

2009 8 9 10 11 12

15 16 17 18 COUNCIL AGM (C) 19

22 23 EXECUTIVE (C) 24 DMC (C) 25 26

29 30 LSP

JUL 1 2 GENERAL PURPOSES 3 OSMP

2009 6 BUS TRANS OSC 7 SUS COMM OSC 8 DMC (D) 9 10

13 CORP RES OSC 14 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 15 LIC'NG/REG 16 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC, 

SPECIAL COUNCIL (C)

17 STANDARDS

20 21 EXECUTIVE (D) 22 DMC (C) 23 24 L&SBJC

27 AUDIT 28 29 30 31

AUG 3 BUS TRANS OSC (R) 4 SUS COMM OSC (R) 5 DMC (D) 6 7

2009 10 CORP RES OSC (R) 11 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 12 13 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 14

17 18 EXECUTIVE (C) 19 20 21

24 25 26 DMC (C) 27 28

31 HOLIDAY

SEP 1 SUS COMM OSC 2 3 BUS TRANS OSC 4

2009 7 CORP RES OSC 8 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 9 DMC (D) 10 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 11

14 15 EXECUTIVE (D) 16 17 18 L&SBJC (R)

21 AUDIT 22 LSP (D) 23 DMC (C) 24 COUNCIL (D) 25

28 BUS TRANS OSC (R) 29 SUS COMM OSC (R) 30

OCT 1 GENERAL PURPOSES 2 OSMP

2009 5 CORP RES OSC (R) 6 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 7 DMC (D) 8 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 9

12 13 EXECUTIVE (C) 14 LIC'NG/REG 15 16

19 20 21 DMC (C) 22 23 L&SBJC

26 BUS TRANS OSC 27 SUS COMM OSC 28 29 30

NOV 2 CORP RES OSC 3 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 4 DMC (D) 5 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 6 STANDARDS

2009 9 10 EXECUTIVE (D) 11 12 13

16 17 18 DMC (C) 19 COUNCIL (C) 20

23 BUS TRANS OSC (R) 24 SUS COMM OSC (R) 25 26 27

30 CORP RES OSC (R)

DEC 1 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 2 DMC (D) 3 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 4

2009 7 8 EXECUTIVE (C) 9 10 11

14 15 LSP 16 DMC (C) 17 18 L&SBJC (R)

21 BUS TRANS OSC 22 SUS COMM OSC 23 24 25 HOLIDAY

28 HOLIDAY 29 30 31

JAN 1 HOLIDAY

2010 4 CORP RES OSC 5 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 6 DMC (D) 7 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 8 OSMP

11 AUDIT 12 EXECUTIVE (D) 13 14 GENERAL PURPOSES 15

18 19 20 DMC (C) 21 COUNCIL (D) 22

25 BUS TRANS OSC (R) 26 SUS COMM OSC (R) 27 28 29 L&SBJC

FEB 1 CORP RES OSC (R) 2 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 3 DMC (D) 4 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 5

2010 8 9 EXECUTIVE (Budget) (C) 10 11 12

15 16 17 DMC (C) 18 19

22 BUS TRANS OSC 23 SUS COMM OSC 24 LIC'NG/REG 25 COUNCIL (Budget) (C) 26 STANDARDS

DRAFT CALENDAR OF MEETINGS APRIL 2009 - MAY 2010                                APPENDIX

11.3



MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY

MAR 1 CORP RES OSC 2 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 3 4 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 5

2010 8 9 EXECUTIVE (D) 10 DMC (D) 11 12

15 16 17 18 19

22 BUS TRANS OSC ® 23 LSP (D) 24 DMC (C) 25 SUS COMM OSC [R] 26 S CARE, HLTH & 

HSG OSC (R), 

L&SBJC

29 CORP RES OSC (R) 30 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 31

APR 1 2 HOLIDAY

2010 5 HOLIDAY 6 EXECUTIVE (C) 7 8 9

12 AUDIT 13 14 DMC (D) 15 GENERAL PURPOSES 16 OSMP

19 BUS TRANS OSC 20 SUS COMM OSC 21 22 COUNCIL AGM (D) 23

26 CORP RES OSC 27 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC 28 DMC (C) 29 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC 30

MAY 3 4 EXECUTIVE (D) 5 6 7

2010 10 11 12 DMC (D) 13 14 STANDARDS

17 BUS TRANS OSC (R) 18 SUS COMM OSC (R) 19 LIC'NG/REG 20 S CARE, HLTH & HSG OSC (R) 21

24 CORP RES OSC (R) 25 CH, FAM & L'NG OSC (R) 26 DMC (C) 27 28

31 HOLIDAY

TIME AND VENUES: All meetings will start at 9.30 a.m.unless otherwise stated on the agenda, with the exception of (i) Council starting at 6.30pm, (ii) 

Development Management which will normally start at 10.00am to consider strategic planning / mineral matters and 2.00pm to consider planning 

applications.  (The chariman shall be authorised to vary the start time according to thebusiness of the meeting); and (iii) Luton & South Beds Joint 

Committee (L&SBJC) - times to be confirmed. (R) indicates a reserve date.                                                                                  Meetings of the Council, 

Executive and Development Management Committee will be held at alternating venues as indicated: (C) Chicksands or (D) Dunstable. Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees will meet initially at Chicksands and then at venues to be determined by each Committee, according to the business to be conducted. 

Licensing Sub-Committees will be arranged at local venues as and when required. Meetings of the Luton and South Bedfordshire Joint Committee 

alternate between Dunstable and Luton. All other meetings will normally be at Chicksands unless otherwise agreed by the committee or body concerned.      

KEY: DMC Development Management Committee LSP Local Strategic Partnership LIC'NG//REG Licensing and Regulation Committees OSC Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee L&SBJC Luton & South Bedfordshire Joint Committee OSMP Overview & Scrutiny Management Panel BUS TRANS OSC Business 

Transformation Overview & Scrutiny Committee SUS COMM OSC Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny Committee CORP RES OSC Corporate 

Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee CH, FAM & L'NG OSC Children, Families & Learning Overview & Scrutiny Committee S CARE, HLTH & HSG 

OSC Social Care, Health & Housing Overview & Scrutiny Committee

11.4



Agenda  
Item No. 
12 

 

12.1 

COUNCIL 

26 February 2009 
 

SUBJECT APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS TO THE 
CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE  COUNCIL’S STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

(To approve the appointment of five Independent Persons to the 
Standards Committee) 

REPORT OF Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Barbara Morris (Tel: 01462 611024) 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY To maintain balanced representation 
on the Standards Committee 

FINANCIAL None 

LEGAL The Relevant Authorities (Standards 
Committee) Regulations 2001 
Local Government Act 2000 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES Advertised and nine applications 
received and considered 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADE UNIONS None 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That Kenneth Frazer, Keith Ford, Jeremy Dann, Deborah Maggs and Mike 
Jones formally be appointed as Independent Persons to serve on the 
Standards Committee with effect from 1 April 2009 until the Elections to be 
held in 2011. 

 
1. In accordance with the draft Central Bedfordshire Council’s Constitution, the 

Standards Committee will comprise of:- 
 
Five elected Members 
Five independent persons, and 
Five members of Town or Parish Councils in the area. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda  
Item No. 
12 

 

12.2 

 
2. A ring fenced selection process took place in January 2009 from the existing 

pool of Independent persons of Mid Bedfordshire Council, South 
Bedfordshire District Council and Bedfordshire County Council Standards 
Committees.  All the Independent persons were requested to submit 
applications if they were interested in standing as an Independent persons 
for the Central Bedfordshire Council’s Standards Committee.  The 
recruitment process was tailored to utilise the expertise that had been built 
up in all Authorities  among the Independent persons.  The closing date for 
applications was 31 December 2008, with interviews taking place on 21 and 
27 January 2009.  The interviewing panel consisted of the Chairman of the 
Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council, together with the Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services/Monitoring Officer for Central Bedfordshire Council. 
 

3. Following those interviews the recommendation is that the following persons 
be appointed to the Central Bedfordshire Standards Committee:- 
 

 (a) Mr Kenneth Frazer 
 

  • Retired RAF Avionics Engineer Officer 

• Currently Member and Chairman of Bedfordshire County 
Council’s Standards Committee 

• Led Committee’s transition and implementation of its new 
adjudication responsibilities. 

 
 (b) Mr Keith Ford 

 
  • Worked in various teaching positions in schools between 1972 – 

2004, including Head Teacher 

• Governing bodies of 5 schools, including Chair of Governors 

• Magistrate (Luton and South Beds) – Chair of the Bedfordshire 
Magistrates’ Training Committees and the Bedfordshire 
Magistrates’ Association 

• Member of the Bedfordshire Valuation Tribunal Panel 

• Currently Member of South Bedfordshire District Council 
Standards Committee and Chairman since 2007 

 
 (c) Mr Jeremy Dann 

 
  • 23 years experience working as a civil servant in various 

Government Departments 

• Last 8 years advised Ministers on complex policy issues and 
familiar with consulting and interpreting legislation, including lead 
for liaison in respect of heritage buildings and funding 

• Member of Mid Beds District Council Standards Committee 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda  
Item No. 
12 

 

12.3 

 
 (d) Miss Deborah Maggs 

 
  • 25 years’ public service experience as both Immigration and Chief 

Immigration Officer, including training responsibility, conducting 
investigations and management 

• Magistrate, regularly chairing Court 

• Full team mentor in making decisions and always give the public 
an account of the court’s reasons for its findings 

• Member and Chairman of Mid Beds District Council Standards 
Committee 

 
 (e) Mr Mike Jones 

 
  • 35 years telecommunications industry engaged in international 

business development, international relations and setting up and 
management of BT in Japan 

• Served as a Director of the Boards of companies in which BT had 
investments 

• Independent consultant in general management, project 
management, bid management and the management of change 
chiefly in the Healthcare sector 

• Member of South Beds District Council Standards Committee 
 

4. It is a requirement of the legislation that the appointment of Independent 
persons are approved by the majority of the Members of the Council.  It is 
therefore requested that the Council approves the recommendation as set 
out above. 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

None 

Location of Papers: 
 

N/A 

File Reference: N/A 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda  
Item No. 
13 

 

13.1 

COUNCIL 

26 February 2009 
 

SUBJECT APPOINTMENT OF TOWN/PARISH COUNCIL MEMBERS TO 
THE CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL’S STANDARDS 
COMMITTEE 
 

(To approve the appointment of five Town/Parish Council Persons 
to the Standards Committee) 

REPORT OF Monitoring Officer 

Contact Officer: Barbara Morris (Tel: 01462 611024) 

 
IMPLICATIONS 

SUSTAINABILITY To maintain balanced representation 
on the Standards Committee 

FINANCIAL None 

LEGAL Local Government Act 2000 
The Relevant Authorities (Standards 
Committee) Regulations 2001 

PERSONNEL/EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES Recruitment process assisted by Beds 
RCC 

COMMUNITY DEV/SAFETY None 

TRADE UNIONS None 

HUMAN RIGHTS None 

 

OTHER DOCUMENTS RELEVANT TO REPORT 

None 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 
That Mr B Collier, Mr K Cursons, Ms J Hughes, Ms J Rollings and Mr J Eilbeck                 
formally be appointed as Town/Parish Council Members to serve on the 
Standards Committee with effect from 1 April 2009 until the Elections to be 
held in 2011. 

 
1. In accordance with the draft Central Bedfordshire Council’s Constitution, the 

Standards Committee will comprise of:- 
 
Five elected Members 
Five independent persons, and 
Five members of Town or Parish Councils in the District. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Agenda  
Item No. 
13 

 

13.2 

2. In order to build upon expertise available, the Monitoring Officer made 
enquiries as to whether existing Town and Parish Councillors from Mid Beds 
and South Beds District Council would be interested in standing as 
Town/Parish Council Members for the Central Beds Council’s Standard 
Committee.  Four existing Members expressed a wish, via Beds RCC, to 
continue to stand.  One seat on the Committee, therefore, remained vacant 
and Beds RCC sought nominations on the Council’s behalf.  A selection 
process for the vacancy took place on 3 February 2009 following receipt of 
three applications.  The Interviewing Panel consisted of the Chairman of the 
Central Bedfordshire Shadow Council, together with the Head of Legal & 
Democratic Services/Monitoring Officer for Central Bedfordshire Council.  
Following the interview of three very competent and well qualified 
candidates, it was recommended that the following person be approved:- 
 

 (a) Mr J Eilbeck (Steppingley Parish Council) 
 

  • Chairman of Steppingley Parish Council 

• Retired from the British Pharmaceutical Industries (ABPI) Advisory 
Group on safety and environmental issues. 

 
3. The other Town and Parish Council Members recommended to serve upon 

the Standard Committee are:- 
 

 (a) Mr B Collier (Stotfold Town Council) 
 

  • Currently a Member of Mid Bedfordshire District Council’s Ethics 
& Standards Committee 

• Ex District Councillor 

• Vice-Chairman of Stotfold Town Council 
 

 (b) Mrs K Cursons (Leighton Linslade Town Council) 
 

  • Appointed Deputy Mayor last May 

• Currently a Member of South Bedfordshire District Council’s 
Standards Committee 

• In second year as a Magistrate 

• On various groups, including Parent Teacher Association, 
Homewatch, school governing body 

 
 (c) Ms J Hughes (Barton-Le-Clay Parish Council) 

 
  • Vice-Chair of Parish Council 

• Currently a Member of  South Bedfordshire District Council’s 
Standards Committee 

• Chair of Leisure Committee of Parish Council 
 



Agenda  
Item No. 
13 

 

13.3 

 
 (d) Ms J Rollings (Caddington & Slip End Parish Council) 

 
  • Currently a Member of South Bedfordshire District Council’s 

Standards Committee 

• 16 years on the Parish Council working in various aspects 

• Set up Caddington Association of Residents 
 
4. Members of the Council are requested to approve the recommendation of 

the five Town/Parish Council Members listed above to serve on the 
Standards Committee of the Central Bedfordshire Council. 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

None 

Location of Papers: 
 

N/A 

File Reference: N/A 
 



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 VACATION OF OFFICE
	6 MEMBERS' ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2009/10
	item 6 - Members' Allowances Appendix A 1
	item 6 - Members' Allowances Appendix A 2
	item 6 - Members' Allowances Appendix B
	item 6 - Members' Allowances Appendix C

	7 CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE DRAFT CONSTITUTION AND INTERIM GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS
	working group

	9 COUNCIL TAX 2009/10
	item 9 - CT RESOLUTION APPX A
	item 9 - CT RESOLUTION APPX B
	item 9 - CT RESOLUTION APPX C

	10 APPOINTMENT OF MEMBERS AND CHAIRMAN TO COMMITTEES FROM APRIL TO JUNE
	11 CALENDAR OF MEETINGS APRIL 2009 - MAY 2010
	item 11 - calendar09-10SBEDSmodel 2

	12 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT PERSONS TO THE CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
	13 APPOINTMENT OF TOWN/PARISH MEMBERS TO THE CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

